
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/
mailto:zeke.jackson@sisterbaywi.gov


VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, MAY 13, 2014 2 

SISTER BAY-LIBERTY GROVE FIRE STATION – 2258 MILL ROAD 3 

UNAPPROVED VERSION 4 
 5 
The May 13, 2014 meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees was called to order by 6 
Village Administrator Zeke Jackson at 6:04 PM. Jackson explained that President Lienau would 7 
not be able to attend this meeting, and, therefore, before any business items could be addressed 8 
an Acting President would have to be nominated and duly elected. 9 
 10 
Present:  Trustees Pam Abshire, Scott Baker, John Clove, Pat Duffy, Donna Scattergood and 11 
Nora Zacek.    12 
 13 
Excused:  Village President Dave Lienau 14 
 15 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Finance Director Juliana Neuman, Utilities 16 
Manager Steve Jacobson, Consultant Robert Kufrin and Janal Suppanz, Administrative Assistant. 17 
 18 
Others:   Laddie Chapman, Mike Konecny and Amber Dreweski of Schenck, SC and Paige 19 
Funkhouser.   20 
 21 
Approval of minutes as published: 22 
As to the minutes for the April 14, 2014 meeting of the Village Board: 23 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Baker to approve the minutes for the April 14, 2014 24 
meeting of the Village Board as presented. Motion carried - All ayes. 25 
 26 
As to the minutes for the April 25, 2014 joint meeting of the Village Board and the Parks, 27 
Properties and Streets Committee: 28 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Baker to approve the minutes for the April 25, 2014 29 
joint meeting of the Village Board and the Parks, Properties and Streets Committee as presented. 30 
Motion carried – All ayes.  31 
 32 
Comments and Correspondence: 33 
A copy of a quarterly call log which had been received from the Door County Sheriff’s 34 
Department was included in the meeting packets and the Board members jointly reviewed that 35 
document. Jackson also noted that a flyer regarding an upcoming Climate Change conference 36 
as well as the poster for Sister Bay’s Field & Street Rally had been included in the meeting 37 
packets. He then asked if anyone wished to address a non-agenda item, but no one responded. 38 
At that point Jackson asked for nominations for someone to serve as Acting Village President. 39 
 40 
Duffy nominated Clove, and that nomination was seconded by Abshire. Clove nominated 41 
Duffy, and that nomination was seconded by Scattergood.  42 
 43 
A motion was made by Scattergood, seconded by Abshire that nominations for Acting President 44 
of the Village Board be closed, and that motion carried. Clove and Duffy both accepted their 45 
nominations, and a show of hands was then taken, at which time Clove was elected 4 to 2. He 46 
then assumed his temporary duties. 47 
  48 
 49 
 50 

2



Minutes for the May 15, 2014 Meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees 

 

-2- 

New Village Board Business Items 1 
Item No. 1.  Open Board of Review; Consider a motion to adjourn until June 17, 2014 from 2 
5:00 P.M. to 7:00 P.M: 3 
At 6:10 P.M. Clove called the Board of Review for the Village of Sister Bay to order.  4 
At 6:11 P.M. a motion was made by Baker, seconded by Duffy to adjourn the Board of Review 5 
Session until Tuesday, June 17, 2014 from 5:00 P.M. to 7:00 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes.   6 
 7 
Item No. 2. Discuss and consider a motion to amend the Village of Sister Bay Board of 8 
Trustee’s Bylaws: 9 
Item No. 3. Discuss and consider a motion to amend the Village of Sister Bay’s 10 
Committee/Commission Bylaws: 11 
Item No. 4. Discuss and consider a motion to confirm President Lienau’s committee 12 
appointments: 13 
A motion was made by Abshire, seconded by Scattergood that Agenda Item No. 2 – Discuss 14 
and consider a motion to amend the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustee’s By-Laws; Agenda 15 
Item No. 3 – Discuss and consider a motion to amend the Village of Sister Bay’s 16 
Committee/Commission Bylaws; and Agenda Item No. 4 – Discuss and consider a motion to 17 
confirm President Lienau’s committee appointments, shall all be tabled until the next regular 18 
meeting of the Village Board. 19 
 20 
Item No. 5. Discuss and consider a motion to approve Resolution No. 286 authorizing the 21 
sale of Village of Sister Bay Parcel No. 181-26-00001L1 on S. Highland Road: 22 
At its January 8, 2014 meeting the Parks, Properties and Streets Committee asked the Village 23 
Administrator to try to sell Village of Sister Bay Parcel No. 181-26-00001L1. An advertisement 24 
for bids was made, and the deadline for submittal of those bids is May 31, 2014. To date one 25 
bid has been received. Disposal of the property will decrease maintenance costs, and return it 26 
to the tax rolls as well as provide additional capital for the Village. A proposed Resolution 27 
which authorizes the sale of the property to the highest bidder was included in the meeting 28 
packets. 29 
 30 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Baker that the Village Board accepts the 31 
recommendation of the Parks, Properties and Streets Committee and adopts Resolution No. 32 
286, which authorizes the sale of Village of Sister Bay Parcel No. 181-26-00001L1 on South 33 
Highland Road. Motion carried – All ayes. 34 
  35 
Item No. 6. Discuss resurfacing of Woodcrest Road: 36 
At its April 14, 2014 meeting the Village Board voted to accept the Door County Highway 37 
Department’s proposal for repairs to Scandia Road (from its intersection with S. Bay Shore Drive 38 
to its intersection with Woodcrest Road), and to Woodcrest Road, (from its intersection with 39 
Scandia Road to the intersection with Autumn Court). The estimated cost of those repairs was 40 
$94,960. That proposal did not include repairs to the remaining Village-owned portion of 41 
Woodcrest Road, which has also taken a beating during the past few months as that road has 42 
been used as a detour while work was done on the Bay Shore Drive Utility Project. The 43 
estimate for that work is $37,700, so the total cost of the project could be as high as $132,660, 44 
but there is a $6,000 credit available from Dorner Construction. Since the detour was 45 
established as a result of work being done on the Utility Project, Jackson and Neuman are 46 
recommending that up to $25,000 of the previously mentioned expenses be charged to that 47 
project. The Village currently has $88,606 available in the Capital Projects Fund reserves for 48 
street resurfacing, as well as LRIP grant funds of $15,000, for a total of $103,606. Neuman is 49 
suggesting that 80% of the $25,000 to be charged to the Utility Project, or that up to $20,000 50 
be charged to the Utility portion of the Bay Shore Drive Project and up to $5,000 be charged to 51 

3



Minutes for the May 15, 2014 Meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees 

 

-3- 

the storm water portion of the project.  1 
 2 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Scattergood that the Village Board accepts the 3 
Door County Highway Department’s proposal to extend the repairs on Woodcrest Road from 4 
its intersection with Autumn Court to the intersection with CTH “ZZ”. The cost of that work 5 
shall not exceed $37,700, and the allocations which were recommended by the Finance 6 
Director shall be made. Motion carried – All ayes. 7 
 8 
Item No. 7. Presentation of the 2013 Audit by Michael Konecny of Schenck, SC: 9 
Mike Konecny of Schenck, SC made a presentation regarding the 2013 Audit for the Village of 10 
Sister Bay and explained the various portions of the Draft Management Communications Letter 11 
and the Annual Financial Report which had been included in the meeting packets. During the 12 
review process Konecny noted that when they conducted this year’s audit he and the other 13 
auditors did not detect any issues which were determined to be material weaknesses. They also 14 
did not find any significant difficulties or uncorrected misstatements, and did not have any 15 
disagreements with management with respect to the audit. The question arose as to whether 16 
other municipalities assess PILOT’s for their Utilities Departments, and Konecny responded that 17 
most of them do, especially if the departments are operating as enterprise funds. The Village 18 
currently has an Ordinance on file which prohibits that type of assessment, so unless a new 19 
Ordinance is adopted that would not be possible. The question also arose as to whether the 20 
Marina will ever receive any T.I.F. revenues, and Konecny responded that if and when T.I.F. 21 
revenues are realized reimbursement of approximately $33,000 should be made. The auditors 22 
are recommending that the Village implement procedures which will provide for the issuance 23 
of receipts or making of general ledger entries on the same day as any money is received. The 24 
implementation of such a procedure would provide additional internal control and assist in the 25 
review and monitoring of daily accounting transactions. Neuman noted that a receipting 26 
module has been ordered and should be utilized soon.  27 
 28 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Abshire that the Village Board accepts the 2013 29 
Annual Audit Report for the Village of Sister Bay as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 30 
 31 
Item A. Opening of the joint meeting of the Bay Shore Drive Committee and the Village 32 
Board: 33 
The joint meeting of the Bay Shore Drive Committee and the Village Board was called to order 34 
by Clove at 7:16 P.M. 35 
 36 
Item B. Discuss and consider a motion to recommend approval of bids from WPS and other 37 
overhead utilities contractors for the burial of overhead utilities along Bay Shore Drive: 38 
For the benefit of the new Board members Kufrin explained the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction 39 
Project schedule and reviewed some of the information which was presented at a series of 40 
public meetings. He also noted that an overwhelming number of Village residents and business 41 
owners have indicated that they would like to see the overhead utility lines eliminated in the 42 
downtown area, and then presented a map which depicts potential routes for burial of utility 43 
lines. The State will be starting their work on the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Project in 44 
2015, and, therefore, they would like Village officials to make a decision regarding the 45 
preferred burial plan by May 21, 2014. If the lines are buried it is possible that some borrowing 46 
will have to be done, but some of those expenses could be offset by grant funds and the sale of 47 
Village owned property. Discussion took place regarding this issue, and it was the consensus 48 
that “Option A” is preferred. Therefore, the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Oversight 49 
Committee made that recommendation.  50 
 51 

4



Minutes for the May 15, 2014 Meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees 

 

-4- 

A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Abshire that the Village Board will be honoring the 1 
wishes expressed by its constituents and the members of the business community, and, 2 
therefore, accepts the recommendation of the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Oversight 3 
Committee that the plan for burial of overhead utility lines in downtown Sister Bay which has 4 
been labeled “Option A”  be approved. The Village Administrator shall enter into contracts for 5 
implementation of the necessary work, which shall extend from the intersection of N. Bay Shore 6 
Drive with STH 57 to its intersection with Scandia Road, and the cost of that work shall not 7 
exceed $1,000,000.00. The Village Administrator is authorized to investigate financing options 8 
for the project. Motion carried – All ayes.  9 
 10 
Item C. Adjournment of the joint meeting of the Bay Shore Drive Committee and the Village 11 
Board: 12 
At 7:57 P.M. a motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Baker that the joint meeting of the Bay 13 
Shore Drive Committee and the Village Board be adjourned. Motion carried – All ayes. 14 
  15 
Item No. 8. Presentation on insurance issues by Scott Baker: 16 
Baker recently attended a League of Municipalities conference on insurance issues on behalf of 17 
the Village and gave a brief summary of the information which was presented. He thought the 18 
conference was very worthwhile and is suggesting that Village officials see that documentation 19 
regarding agility recovery be completed. It was the consensus that this shall occur.   20 
 21 
Item No. 9. Discussion regarding scheduling of a date for a second Village Board Meeting in 22 
May, 2013: 23 
Item No. 10. Report on County activities from the County Supervisor, Dave Lienau: 24 
Since Lienau was not able to attend this meeting neither of these agenda items were addressed. 25 
 26 
Item No. 11. Review of the financial statements and consideration of a motion to approve the 27 
monthly bills:    28 
Budget Reports for the first quarter of 2014 as well as Payment Approval Reports for the period 29 
April 17, 2014 through May 13, 2014 were included in the meeting packets and the Board 30 
members jointly reviewed all of those documents. Neuman noted that due to an oversight on 31 
her part a monthly bill summary report was not included in the meeting packets. She has 32 
determined that the monthly bills total $174,020.26, but that figure does not include two 33 
payrolls. Dorner Construction has also submitted a document labeled Request and Certification 34 
For Payment No. 3 in the amount of $487,848.20.  35 
 36 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the monthly bills depicted on the reports 37 
which are included in the meeting packets totaling $174,020.26, as well as two payrolls and 38 
Request and Certification For Payment No. 3 submitted by Dorner Construction for 39 
$487,848.20 are all approved. Motion carried – All ayes. 40 
 41 
Committee Reports: 42 
(1) Administrative Committee/Public Relations Committee 43 
The Administrative Committee has not met. 44 
 45 
(2) Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Oversight Ad Hoc Committee 46 
The Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Oversight Ad Hoc Committee just met a few minutes ago.  47 
 48 
(3) Communication and Technology Committee 49 
The Communication and Technology Committee has not met recently.   50 
 51 

5



Minutes for the May 15, 2014 Meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees 

 

-5- 

(4) Door County Coastal Byways Commission 1 
The Door County Coastal Byways Commission just met last Thursday. A final request for 2 
reimbursement has been submitted to the Federal Highways and Byways Commission.  3 
 4 
(5) DCEDC  5 
The DCEDC just met yesterday. On May 21, 2014 there will be a grand opening ceremony for 6 
the Door County Visitor Bureau’s electric vehicle charging station in Sturgeon Bay.  7 
 8 
(6) Economic Development Committee 9 
The Economic Development Committee has not met recently. Jackson noted that Kurt Kaiser 10 
recently approached him about doing some volunteer work/serving an economic development 11 
internship for the Village, and he gratefully accepted his offer. Kaiser will be working on grant 12 
applications.  13 
 14 
(7) Finance Committee 15 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets.     16 
 17 
(8) Fire Board and Fire District Exploratory Committee: 18 
 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The Fire District 19 
Exploratory Committee has not met recently. 20 
 21 
(9) Historical Society 22 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. There has been 23 
ongoing discussion about moving the old school which is currently utilized as the Visitor 24 
Center out to the Corner of the Past. 25 
   26 
(10) Library Commission 27 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The Garden 28 
Dedication Ceremony will be conducted on July 12, 2014. It is Abshire’s understanding that all 29 
the Board members will be invited to that ceremony. 30 
      31 
(11) Marina Committee and Marina Fest Committee: 32 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets.  33 
 34 
The Marina Fest Committee has not met recently.  35 
 36 
(12) Parks 37 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. 38 
 39 
(13) Personnel Committee 40 
The Personnel Committee has not met recently.       41 
 42 
(14) Plan Commission 43 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. Due to 44 
scheduling conflicts, this month’s Plan Commission Meeting will not be conducted until 45 
Tuesday, May 27, 2014. 46 
 47 
(15) SBAA 48 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets.     49 
 50 
 51 

6



Minutes for the May 15, 2014 Meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees 

I:\2014 Agendas\Board\2014\2014_05\WORD FILES\051314 Village Board Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 5/13/2014; Last Printed:  6/13/2014 2:17 PM 

-6- 

(16) Teen Center 1 
The Teen Center Board has not met recently. 2 
 3 
(17) Tourism Zone Commission 4 
No action based on the minutes which included in the meeting packets.  5 
 6 
(18) Utilities 7 
The Utilities Committee has not met recently.  8 
 9 
(19) Administration/Compensation Oversight 10 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. 11 
Recommendations should be forthcoming from the Committee soon.  12 
 13 
(20) Waterfront Oversight 14 
The Waterfront Oversight Committee has not met recently. 15 
 16 
(21) Zoning Board of Appeals 17 
The Zoning Board of Appeals has not met recently. 18 
 19 
Item No. 12. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a 20 
committee, official or employee: 21 
There were no suggestions for matters to be placed on a future agenda or referrals to a 22 
committee, official or employee. The Board members did discuss the possibility of rescheduling 23 
some of the regular monthly committee and commission meetings. This will initially be 24 
addressed by the Administration Committee. 25 
  26 
Adjournment: 27 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Duffy to adjourn the meeting of the Board of 28 
Trustees at 8:31 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes, 29 
 30 
Respectfully submitted,  31 

 32 
Janal Suppanz,  33 
Administrative Assistant34 

7



8



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
For additional information: www.sisterbaywi.gov 

             Meeting Date: 06/17/14
              Item No.:1 
 
Recommendation: That the Board accept the recommendation of the Fire Committee and adopt Ordi-
nance 229-061714, repealing Chapter 14, Art II, the Automatic Fire Sprinkler Ordinance. 
 
Background: 013 Wisconsin Act 270, which took effect on April 18, 2014, established a Uniform 
Commercial Building Code (UCBC), which prohibits municipalities from adopting or enforcing stricter 
building code regulations.    
  
However, Act 270 allows municipalities to seek grandfather status for more stringent fire detection, 
prevention, or suppression ordinances in place prior to May 1, 2013. Only ordinances meeting the fol-
lowing requirements can be grandfathered.    
 
1. The ordinance was enacted before May 1, 2013. 
2. The ordinance was published by the municipality in the manner required under state law, secs. 
61.50, or 62.11 (4). 
3. The ordinance relates to fire detection, prevention, or suppression components of buildings. 
4. The building is not a multifamily dwelling, as defined in sec. 101.971 (2). 
5. The ordinance is submitted to the Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services (DSPS) 
by June 17, 2014. 
6. DSPS determines that the ordinance requires standards that are at least as strict as the rules promul-
gated by the department. 
 
On review of the current code by Chief Hecht, it would appear that the more stringent local ordinance 
caused installation of sprinklers or other fire prevention measures on a handful of occasions (4). To 
have a local code that is more stringent than a state standard will be a hindrance to development, and 
will complicate the construction planning and inspection process.  The new state code provides for 
sprinkling in high risk facilities such as hotels, mitigating much of the need for our code.   
 
The Fire Committee examined this issue in detail and recommends repeal of Ch. 14, Art II in its entirety 
so that the Village will default to the State standard.   
    
Fiscal Impact:  None. 
  
  
        Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
        Zeke Jackson 
        Village Administrator 
  

9

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/


ORDINANCE NO. 229-061714 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING CHAPTER 14, ART II OF THE VILLAGE OF SISTER 

BAY BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATION CODE. 
 

WHEREAS,  THE VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY SEEKS PARTICIPATE IN A STATE WIDE UNIFORM 

BUILDING CODE; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, LET IT BE ORDAINED THAT: CHAPTER 14, ART II OF THE SISTER BAY 

BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATION CODE  IS HEREBY REPEALED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 
Section 1 – Other Conflicts 
All other Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
Section 2 – Effective Date 
This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage and publication 
according to law. 
 
Section 3 – Severability 
If a Court of competent jurisdiction adjudges any section, clause, provision or portion of this 
Ordinance unconstitutional or invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance shall not be affected 
thereby. 
 
Village of Sister Bay      Attest: 
 
By: ___________________________________  ____________________________ 
 David W. Lienau, President    Christine M. Sully, Clerk WCPC, MMC 
 
         Date Introduced: June 17, 2014 
         Date Adopted: ________________ 
         Publication Date: ________________ 
 

10



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
For additional information: www.sisterbaywi.gov 

             Meeting Date: 06/17/14
              Item No.: 2 
 
Recommendation: That the Board consider the recommendation of the Marina Committee and adopt 
the Amended Bylaws for Marinafest. 
 
Background: Marinafest was started in an effort to “give back” to the community, and to aid Village 
Non-Profits in fundraising in order to accomplish their organizational goals.  A sum of money has been 
appropriated each year in the Marina budget for supporting Marinafest.  $8500 is budgeted annually 
for Marinafest revenue, however, Marinafest, as an expense to the Marina, costs in excess of $18,500 
annually.  This situation has led to the Marina covering the shortfall from operating and cash reserves 
each year.  The Marinafest committee and Village have worked to defray these costs over the years, 
with a percentage of Non-Profit’s sales going to the event, as well as donations sought and obtained for 
the annual fireworks show.   
 
The Marina’s cash position is currently strong, however, projections indicate that the Marina will ex-
haust its cash holdings and run negative in a few years (5).  Planning efforts are underway by the Mari-
na Committee to control expenses and enhance revenue at the Marina.  Most recently, a decision was 
made to cut cable TV expenses by several thousand dollars by discontinuing service. 
 
The Marina Committee has reviewed the proposed Bylaw changes in an effort to enhance the event 
experience, to integrate the event into Waterfront Park by expanding to the South, and to increase rev-
enues by inviting special entertainment and for profit vendors to participate in the event. 
 
Given the long standing nature of the event and its relationship to the community, the Board may wish 
to review this before final adoption. 
 
    
Fiscal Impact:  To be determined. 
  
  
        Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
        Zeke Jackson 
        Village Administrator 
  

11

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/


Marina Fest By-Laws 

Proposed 040814 

The sponsoring and funding organization of the MARINA FEST is the Marina Committee.  The Marina Fest 

Committee shall report to the Marina Committee.  If there is ever a disagreement regarding Marina Fest 

plans, the final authority rests with the Sister Bay Board of Trustees.  Availability of funding is part of the 

annual Village budget process.  None of the funding comes from taxpayer money.  All funding comes from 

the Marina Budget, which is a self-sustaining account. 

1. Marina Fest is held the Saturday of Labor Day weekend-rain date events on Sunday are possible 

for some events.  All events shall be held in the Waterfront Park. 

2. Membership on the committee shall be the Marina Committee Chairperson, A member of the 

Parks Committee, the Marina Manager, and a Citizen alternate. 

3. Nonprofit Vendor Exclusivity Clause-Only one nonprofit vendor shall have the right to sell a 

given product, with a priority given in order of participation in Marina Fest since its beginning.  

Any duplication of a product would only be allowed with the consent of the original nonprofit 

vendor with the right to sell the product.  The spirit of this rule is to allow for optimum 

moneymaking opportunities for all nonprofit vendors participating in Marina Fest.  Nonprofit 

Vendors shall donate 10% of profits to the general Marina Fest fund. 

4. Commercial Vendors Allowed-Commercial vendors selling food, clothing, crafts, beer, wine, or 

other goods are encouraged to participate in Marina Fest.  The fee for a 10’x20’ space shall be 

$250 + 10% of gross sales over $250.  Vendors providing special entertainment or unique 

services shall have a rate of participation negotiated by the Marina Manager and Village 

Administrator. 

5. Vendors that cancel may have their space reassigned by the Marina Manager. 

6. The addition of any new vendor, and the product they sell, will be subject to review by the 

Marina Fest Committee and be allowed subject to the availability of space in Waterfront and 

Marina Park. 

7. All vendors shall have some general duties for the good of the entire festival, as assigned by the 

Marina Fest Committee. 

8. All Vendors shall keep their own area clean throughout the day and empty the trash barrels 

nearest their booths regularly. 

9. Vendors that leave before the fireworks show shall be ineligible to participate in the following 

year. 

10. All setup must be done as much as possible on day before the event.  The parking lot within the 

Marina will be closed for all vehicle and boat traffic from the public on the night before the 

event.  The wooden boat show must be launched by 9AM on the day of the event.  Vehicle 

traffic from all festival participants must be completed by 9AM on the day of the event, and the 

entire parking lot area will be closed for the duration of the event, subject to the needs of the 

Marina and Marina Fest. 

11. The only solicitation done from the community and businesses of Sister Bay shall be for a 

donation fund designated for fireworks and advertising.   

12



 
For additional information: http://sisterbaywi.gov 

 
Meeting Date: 06/17/2014 

Item No. 3 
 
Recommendation: That the Board approve Resolution 288-061714, Seeking Grant Assistance from the 
WI DNR Recreational Boating Fund. 
   
 
Background: The Marina and Finance Committees have approved proposed renovations to the Marina 
Public Restrooms.  These renovations may be eligible for RBF grant funding from the Department of 
Natural Resources.  If successful, the grant would lessen the financial burden on the Marina and Vil-
lage.    
 
Fiscal Impact: If funded, the Village will receive 50% of the cost of public restroom renovations from 
DNR; this will be approximately $12,500. 
       Respectfully submitted, 
        
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 

13



Resolution No 288-061714 

Request Assistance from WI DNR for RBF Grant Funding 

 

WHEREAS, The Village of Sister Bay hereby requests assistance for the purpose of 

Undertaking public boating restroom renovations at the Sister Bay Marina; and 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that The Village of Sister Bay has budgeted a sum 

sufficient to complete the project, and HEREBY AUTHORIZES Wendy Tatzel and Zeke 

Jackson, to act on behalf of the Village of Sister Bay to:  Submit an application to the 

Department of Natural Resources for financial assistance; Sign documents; and Take 

necessary action to undertake, direct and complete the approved project. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Village of Sister Bay will comply with state and 

federal rules for the programs; may perform force account work; will maintain the 

completed project in an attractive, inviting and safe manner; will keep the facilities open to 

the general public during reasonable hours consistent with the type of facility; and 

willobtain approval from the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources before any 

change is made in the use of the project site (if applicable). 

Adopted this 17th  day of June, 2014. 

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted by the Sister Bay Board of 

Trustees at a legal meeting 

on the 17th day of June 2014. 

INTRODUCED at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay held this 17th 
day of June, 2014. 
 

 

        __________________________________________ 
        David W. Lienau, Village President          

ATTEST: 

________________________________________  VOTE: Ayes _____ Noes _____ 

Christy Sully, Village Clerk 

14



 

Name: i:\2014 agendas\board\2014\2014_06\br 4 ord 061714 grease trap.docx  Created: 6/13/2014 11:08 AM Printed: 
6/13/2014 11:31 AM Author: Martha Baker Last Saved By:  Martha Baker Revision: 1 

 
For additional information: http://intranet.sisterbay.com 

 
Meeting Date: 06/16/14 

Item No. 4 
 
Recommendation: That the Board adopt Ordinance No. 228-061714 amending and recreating 
Section 62.11(f)(1)(a) of the Village of Sister Bay Utility Code. 
 
Background: At the December 10, 2012 meeting of the Village Board changes were adopted to 
the Utility Code, Chapter 62, adding a section of rules regarding the installation of grease in-
terceptors at commercial food service properties.  The deadline within this section gives busi-
ness owners until December 1, 2014 to come into compliance with the new ordinance.  Some 
business owners have expressed a desire to extend the deadline for compliance by one year.  
Village Administrator Jackson and Utility Superintendent Jacobson are in agreement with their 
request. 
 
Fiscal Impact: None at this time. 
 
       At your service, I am 
        
 
 
 
 
 
       Martha Baker 
       Utility Clerk 

15

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


ORDINANCE NO. 228-061714 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND RECREATING SECTION 62.11 OF THE 

VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY UTILITY CODE. 
 

WHEREAS,  THE VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY SEEKS TO EXTEND TIME TO ITS BUSINESS 

COMMUNITY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH THIS SECTION OF THE CODE; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, LET IT BE ORDAINED THAT: SECTION 62.11(F)(1)(A) OF THE SISTER BAY 

UTILITY CODE IS HEREBY AMENDED AND RECREATED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

CHANGED TO:

 

 
 
Section 1 – Other Conflicts 
All other Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
Section 2 – Effective Date 
This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage and publication 
according to law. 
 
Section 3 – Severability 
If a Court of competent jurisdiction adjudges any section, clause, provision or portion of this 
Ordinance unconstitutional or invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance shall not be affected 
thereby. 
 
Village of Sister Bay      Attest: 
 
By: ___________________________________  ____________________________ 
 David W. Lienau, President    Christine M. Sully, Clerk WCPC, MMC 
 
         Date Introduced: June 17, 2014 
         Date Adopted: ________________ 
         Publication Date: ________________ 
 

16



 
For additional information: http://intranet.sisterbay.com 

 
Meeting Date: 06/10/14 

Item No. 5 
 
Recommendation: That the Board approves the following licenses and permits for the period July 
1, 2014 through June 30, 2015. 
 

1. Soda water beverage license permits as listed. 
2. Cigarette license permits as listed. 
3. Operators and agents as listed  
4. Various liquor licenses as listed. 

 
Background: In October 2010, the Board approved a major revision and update to Chapter 6 of the 
Municipal Code, which covered liquor. Each of the applicants has submitted a drawing of the 
property and building where liquor sales or consumption would occur. The Code allows the Vil-
lage Board to designate approved areas for sales and consumption as well as establish various re-
quirements. A spreadsheet was developed for the Board to fill out for each of the permit holders.  
 
Christy has completed all the boxes to the left of the black line. The businesses that have complet-
ed their fire inspections are indicated with a YES in the light purple column. Any business that has 
not completed their fire inspection may be conditionally approved pending the Fire Department 
approval. Any business that has outstanding fees, charges or taxes should not be issued a license 
until they are paid in full. In the light blue column, Christy has indicated which businesses can sell 
off premise. The Class B Beer and Class C Wine licenses can only sell beer off premise. 
 
The first green column shows which businesses allow indoor consumption. Section 6.30 of the 
Code establishes the regulations or restrictions that the Board may impose on a license. The 
spreadsheet identifies issues that have generated complaints in the past, which include, noise from 
bands both indoors and outdoors, fighting and disturbances both on and off premise, trash and de-
bris on private property and public streets, control of sales to minors.  
 
1. The first question for the Board to answer is the applicant’s drawing showing the outdoor 

sales and consumption area clearly delineated? Does that area change during festivals?  
2. The second question is answered in part by the Code that states outdoor sales must stop at 

10:00 pm. The issue is how many hours past 10:00 pm can customers consume alcohol in 
that outdoor area. Is it an issue if or how the licensee controls indoor sales to customers 
walking outdoors to drink? 

3. How does the licensee insure that liquor is only consumed on the premise as defined above? 
Is there any need for fencing or a person providing security? 

4. Many licensees have engaged bands for certain nights as entertainment. When bands are 
playing either indoors or outdoors should any restrictions apply such as closing windows, 
doors, hours of playing, days of the week, etc.? 

5. How does the licensee propose to be responsible for the litter, cans and bottles that custom-
ers drop on sidewalks, adjacent properties streets and other areas? Does the licensee have 
any trash or recycling containers outdoors for patrons entering or leaving the property? 

17

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


6. During Jump ‘in June, Marina Fest, Fall Fest and all the other festivals are there any other re-
strictions that should be applied? Should the Board seek input from the Marina Committee 
and SBAA on outdoor liquor sales during festivals? 

 
Many of these items had been discussed with different licenses in the past, but it does not appear 
that they were ever formally acted upon in the minutes. The Board can choose to approve different 
restrictions for different business as well as not establishing any restrictions at all for any business.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Zeke Jackson 
Village Administrator 
. 
 
 
        

18



 

 

 

 

2014 

 

CLASS A BEER & LIQUOR LICENSES    AGENT/OWNER 

 

Bhirdo's by the Bay       Denise L Bhirdo 

Top Shelf Cafe & Gourmet      Anne Alberts 

Shopko        Lori Brockman 

Piggly Wiggly        Jay Kita 

 

CLASS B BEER & LIQUOR LICENSES 

 

Husby’s        John Sawyer 

Sister Bay Bowl       Sharon Daubner 

 

SPECIAL B 

 

Little Sister Resort       Greg Sunstrom 

 

300 SEAT B 

 

Mission Grill        J Gary Guterman 

Northern Grill        Ron MacDonald 

 

CLASS A BEER LICENSES 

 

Voight's Country Walk Amoco     Dennis & Lisa Voight 

Sister Bay Mobil        Dave Lienau 

 

CLASS B BEER & CLASS C WINE LICENSES 

 

Al Johnson’s Swedish Restaurant     Lars Johnson 

Church Hill Inn       Mike Goldstone 

Grasse’s Grill        Jim Grasse 

Inn at Kristophers       Mark Antczak 

Chop         PatsyWuollett 

Wild Tomato        John Britton Unkefer 

Drink Coffee        Rachel Lohman 

Cheesecake Etc       Scott Dell 

Bayridge Golf Course       Erik Anderson 

Door County Creamery      Jesse Johnson 

19



 

 

2014 OPERATOR'S LICENSES    AGENT/OWNERS PRESENT 

 

Christopher Janisse   Husby’s      John Sawyer  

James Larson   Husby’s 

Alex Higginbotham   Husby’s 
Mike Termini   Husby’s  

Chad Kodanko   Husby’s 

Kerri Rentmeester   Husby’s 
Art Turnquist   Husby’s 

Carlin Hatch   Husby’s 

Kayla Geeve   Husby’s 
Janet Jenisse   Husby’s 

Nicloe Schutte   Husby’s 

Meighan Callahan   Husby’s 
 

Andrea Erickson   Bhirdo's       Denise L Bhirdo 

Michele Bhirdo-Pluff   Bhirdo's 
Lisa Glabe    Bhirdo’s 

Janal Suppanz   Bhirdo’s 

  
Dolly Zahn   Piggly Wiggly     Jay Kita 

Heike Tavenner   Piggly Wiggly 

Refik Ozbek   Piggly Wiggly 
Sandra Zak   Piggly Wiggly 

Jay Kita    Piggly Wiggly 
 

Gary Willems   Sister Bay Bowl     Sharon Daubner 

Penny L Anschutz   Sister Bay Bowl 
Brett C Anschutz   Sister Bay Bowl 

Joseph Baldwin   Sister Bay Bowl 

Paula Anschutz   Sister Bay Bowl 
Robbie LeClair   Sister Bay Bowl 

Lukas Willems   Sister Bay Bowl 

Eric Rockwell   Sister Bay Bowl 
Mike Daubner   Sister Bay Bowl 

Beth Lent    Sister Bay Bowl 

Robert Schult   Sister Bay Bowl 
Katherine Hastings   Sister Bay Bowl 

Mike Herbst   Sister Bay Bowl 

Oliva Lowery   Sister Bay Bowl 
 

David Brancato   Country Walk Amoco     Dennis & Lisa Voght 

John Voight   Country Walk Amoco 
Gary Miller   Country Walk Amoco 

Richard Larson   Country Walk Amoco 

Kendall Koehler   Country Walk Amoco 
Carl Heine    Country Walk Amoco 

Sherry Lettie   Country Walk Amoco 

 
Mike Goldstone   Church Hill Inn     Mike Goldstone 

 

Lars Johnson   Al Johnson’s     Lars Johnson 

Bryn Busslemeier   Al Johnson’s 

Annika Johnson   Al Johnson’s 

 
Tonda Gagliardo   Mission Grill     J Gary Guterman 

Jennifer Elkins   Mission Grill 

 
Elly Marie Polomis   Sister Bay Mobil     Dave Lienau 

Alexandra Oneata   Sister Bay Mobil 

 
James Grasse   Grasse’s Grill     James Grasse 

Jessica Grasse   Grasse’s Grill 

 
Carla Krist    Shopko       Loraine Brokman 

Lorraine Brokman   Shopko  

Patrick Herwig   Shopko 
Shirley Jacobs   Shopko 

Kandie Skippon   Shopko 

 
Greg Sunstrom   Little Sister Resort     Greg Sunstrom 

Bob Hermen   Little Sister Resort 

Gene Lhost   Little Sister Resort 
 

20



 

 

Alyse-Marie Freeman   Northern Grill     Ron Mac Donald 

Christopher Clark   Northern Grill 

 

Diane Trenchard   Bayridge Golf Course     Diane Trenchard 

Chaloner Brown  
 

Patsy Wuollett   Chop      Patsy Wuollett 

 
Scott Dell    Cheesecake Etc     Scott Dell 

 

Rachael Johnson   Door County Creamery    Jesse Johnson 
 

Steven Gomoll   SBAA      Paige Funkhouser 

John Ostran   SBAA 
 

Larry Gajda   Sister Bay Lions 

Richard Stultz   Sister Bay Lions 
Dennis Paschke   Sister Bay Lions 

 

Anastsia Bell   SB/LBG Firefighters     Chris Hecht 
 

Rachel Lohman   Drink Coffee     Rachel Lohman 

21



 

 

 

 

 

2014 

 

SODA LICENSES     CIGARETTE LICENSES 

        Bhirdo's 

        Top Shelf Cafe & Gourmet 

Bayridge Golf      Sister Bay Mobile 

Bhirdo's By the Bay     Country Walk Amoco  

        Piggly Wiggly 

Carroll House       

Cheesecake Etc. 

Chop 

Church Hill Inn      

Coachlight Inn       

Country Walk Amoco 

Door County Creamery 

Drink Coffee 

Grasse’s Grill 

Husby's 

Inn at Kristofers 

Al Johnson's 

Little Sister Resort 

Mission Grill & Games 

Northern Grill 

Open Hearth Lodge 

Patio  Drive-Inn & Motel 

Piggly Wiggly 

Pirate's Cove 

Shopko 

Sister Bay Bowl 

Sister Bay Cafe Inc 

Sister Bay Mobil 

Sister Bay/Liberty Grove Fire Dept (2) 

Top Shelf Cafe & Gourmet 

Wild Tomato 

 

 

22



Sister Bay Liquor License Permits and Renewals July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015 6/13/2014 11:44

Fire Indoor Indoor Outdoor Service Restrictions

Inspection All Taxes Off Premise Service Service Exact Hours of Access Music

License by Type Completed Paid Sales Restrictions Location Operation Control Bands Other Festival Restrictions

Class A Beer and Liquor

Bhirdo's by the Bay yes yes Yes No N/A N/A

Top Shelf yes yes Yes No N/A N/A

Shopko yes yes Yes No N/A N/A

Piggly Wiggly yes yes Yes No N/A N/A

Class B Beer and Liquor

Husby's yes yes Yes Yes Multiple

Sister Bay Bowl yes yes Yes Yes Front patio

Special B

Little Sister Resort yes yes Yes Yes Grassy lawn

300 Hundred Seat B

Mission Grill yes yes Yes Yes Patio and deck

Northern Grill yes yes Yes Yes Deck

Class A Beer

Voight's Country Walk yes yes Yes No N/A N/A

Sister Bay Mobil yes yes Yes No N/A N/A

Class B Beer and Class C Wine

Al Johnsons yes yes Beer only Yes N/A

Church Hill Inn yes yes Beer only Yes N/A

Grasse's Grill yes yes Beer only Yes Front and side patios

Inn at Kristofer's yes yes Beer only Yes Front patio

Drink Coffee yes yes Beer only Yes Front patio

Wild Tomato yes yes Beer only Yes Rear garden area, patios

Bay Ridge Golf Course yes yes Beer only Yes Golf course

Cheesecake Etc. yes yes Beer only Yes Deck

Chop yes yes Beer only Yes Deck ,common areas

Door County Creamery yes yes Beer only Yes Patio

Restrictions for both indoor and outdoor service could be as follows:

If music - jukebox, live band or comedy act, etc. then the hours of operation or control of sound outside the building or from the outdoor venue. Open/close windows or doors.

If consumption is outdoors any limits to the time of sales versus the time period for consumption. For example sales until 11:30 pm on a deck allowing consumption until 2:00 am outside.

Is security "a bouncer" required at any time.

How is trash and debris from the operation which ends up on the street and parking lot handled? Trash receptacles by doors or other locations. 

How will the vendor limit the consumption of alcohol to the licensed premise? Deck, fencing, white line on ground, etc.

Is the location for outdoor consumption clearly delineated?

During festivals should any additional restrictions be imposed? 

23



 
For additional information: http://intranet.sisterbay.com 

 
Meeting Date: 06/10/14 

Item No. 6 
 
Recommendation: That the Board moves to commend Mike Schell on the recommendation of 
Utilities Director Steve Jacobson  
 
Background: During the Bay Shore Dr. Utilities project, Mr. Schell was instrumental to the superv i-
sion of the project.  He was present in the field working with Donohue and Dorner on a wide 
range of problem solving and construction tasks.  Toward the end of the project, he served in place 
of Donohue engineers in order to represent the Village, and to lessen the cost burden to the Utility.  
 
It was a job well done, and was one worth a pat on the back.   
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Zeke Jackson 
Village Administrator 
. 
 
 
        

24

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


 

VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY UTILITIES 
P.O. Box 91, Sister Bay, WI 54234 

Phones:  Voice 920-854-2246     Fax 920-854-7602    Cellular 920-421-0254 

  

To:  Mike Schell 

 

Per:  Commendation 

 

Date: 6-17-14 

 

On behalf of the Village of Sister Bay Utilities  and Board of Trustees, we commend Mike Schell 

for his dedication and excellent work during the difficult construction of the North Bay Shore 

Drive reconstruction project and road restorations. During construction he worked closely with 

the Inspector and Contractor daily to adjust valves and notify customers of water shut offs.  

 

Weather conditions made it difficult to give a firm time. His ability to interact and explain to the 

customers the problems we were having made the job easier than it could have been. During road 

reconstruction he worked closely with our local contractor and the County Highway Dept. to 

adjust and replace as needed all old main valves and manholes to minimize any problems for 

future road work or Utility issues. During this time the Utility Dept. was short handed for a major 

part of the construction and restoration. He worked extra hours to make sure the Village and 

Utility issues were taken care of as needed.  

 

A sincere thank you for your service to all. 

 

____________________     ________________________ 

Steve Jacobson, Utilities Director    Dave Lienau, President 

 

 

 

 

 

25



 

Name: i:\2014 agendas\board\2014\2014_06\br 7 reso 287-061014 cmar 2013 report.docx Created: 6/13/2014 10:59 AM 
Printed: 6/13/2014 11:33 AM Author: Robert Kufrin Last Saved By: Zeke Jackson Revision: 2 

 
For additional information: http://intranet.sisterbay.com 

 
Meeting Date: 06/17/14 

Item No. 7 
 
Recommendation: That the Board Resolution No. 287-061714 Approving the 2013 Annual 
Compliance Maintenance Report. 
 
Background: Each year the DNR requires the Village Utilities to submit a report that identifies 
the various operating levels and maintenance activities at the wastewater plant and collection 
system. The Utilities Committee discussed the report at their May 20 meeting. The report gen-
erated high marks for Sister Bay—a “grade point average” of 4.00 for 2013. 
 
Fiscal Impact: None at this time. 
 
       At your service, I am 
        
 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 

26

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


 
 

Resolution No. 287-061014 
Approving the 2013 Annual Compliance Maintenance Report 

 
WHEREAS, the Utilities Superintendent of the Village of Sister Bay has reviewed the 2013 Annual 
Compliance Maintenance Report to be submitted to the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources, 
and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay, Wisconsin 
that the attached 2013 Annual Compliance Maintenance report prepared by Steve Jacobson is hereby 
approved. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution and report is forwarded to the Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources.  
 
Introduced at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay held this 10th day 
of June 2014. 
 
Passed and adopted this 10th day of June 2014. 
 
 
         _____________________________________ 
         Dave Lienau, President 
ATTEST: 
__________________________________     VOTE: Ayes _____ Noes _____ 
Christy Sully, Village Clerk WCPC MMC 
 
 
 
 
 
File Name: \\sb01\redirectedfolders\martha.baker\my documents\active\agendas\board\2014\2014_06\reso 287 – 061014 compliance 
maintenance report 2013 dnr.doc Printed: 6/13/2014 11:50 AM  Created: 5/28/2014 12:27 AM Author: Martha Baker  Revision: 1 

27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
For additional information: www.sisterbaywi.gov 

             Meeting Date: 05/13/14
             Item Nos.: 10 & 11 
 
Recommendation: That the Board Adopt the Proposed Changes to the Board of Trustee and Committee 
and Commission Bylaws 
 
Background: The Village has conducted its local Water and Wastewater Collection Utilities business 
through a joint committee made up of representatives of Sister Bay and Liberty Grove.  Upon consulta-
tion with legal council, the intergovernmental operations agreement with the Town of Liberty Grove 
would allow the Village to conduct meetings at a separate committee in order to localize the policy 
formulation and oversight of our Water and Wastewater Collection System. This new committee would 
also allow for discussion of local issues separate from discussions on operations of the Wastewater 
Plant.   
 
Further, the Parks, Properties and Streets Committee currently has authority over Storm Sewer construc-
tion, maintenance, and assessments.  A combined Water, Wastewater Collection and Storm Water 
Committee would allow the Village to capitalize on the knowledge and expertise of its Utilities de-
partment staff in the management of Storm water issues.  The Bay Shore Dr. Project and other recent 
projects with storm water impacts has created the necessity of a committee to examine Storm Water 
simultaneously with our Water and Wastewater collection systems.  Staff proposes that the Village Ad-
ministrator, Utilities Director, Finance Director, and when appropriate, Parks Director serve as ex-
officio members of this new committee.  
   
Fiscal Impact:  Will possibly allow the Village to reduce the number of required Utilities Committee 
meetings, and will create a streamlined process for management and oversight of all underground utili-
ties controlled by the Village Government.   
  
  
        Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
        Zeke Jackson 
        Village Administrator 
  

53

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/


 
 
 
 

54



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 2 

55



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 3 

56



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 4 

57



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 5 

58



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

59



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

60



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 8 

61



 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

62



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 011414 

 2 

 

 

 

 

 

63



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 011414 

 3 

64



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 011414 

 4 

65



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 011414 

 5 

66



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 011414 

 6 

67



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 011414 

 7 

68



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 011414 

 8 

 

 

 

 

 

69



 
For additional information: http://intranet.sisterbay.com 

 
Meeting Date: 06/17/14 

Item No. 12 
 
Recommendation: That the Board approves recommendation of the Parks Committee and authorize the Village Adminis-
trator to execute a contract amendment with JJR for rebidding the Beach Project.  
 
Background: Following the first round of bidding, Mr. Kufrin and Mr. Jackson worked with JJR to identify items which 
could be adjusted in the bid package which would reduce the amounts demanded by a subsequent round of bidding by 
contractors.  It is estimated that these savings will run shy of $100,000 in savings; all other things being the same.  
 
The timing of contract completion may offer additional cost savings and enhance the competitive bidding requirement 
by reducing time constraints associated with the uncertainty of Door County’s weather.  
 
Mr. Jackson has investigated alternative firms for bidding the project and this could be accomplished, however, the 
sums of the new engineering bid management firm would be similar to that of JJR, and would not offer the Project and 
Contract administration value that JJR provides.   
 
JJR would provide the following services: 
A. Modify Construction Documents to incorporate agreed-upon revisions summarized below: 

1. Remove specification requirement that Contractor perform field surveys during construction. Instead, the Vi l-
lage will hire a surveyor under a separate contract. 

 2. Allow use of either armor stone or smaller stone for breakwater underlayer.  
3. Remove requirement that stone be obtained from a USCOE-certified quarry. Maintain requirement that stone 
meet USCOE requirements but verify through a 3rd-party inspector hired by the Village. 
4. Provide general updates to construction documents including completion dates, labor rates, advertisement, 
etc. 
5. Remove requirement that Contractor purchase materials. We understand that the Village will purchase mater i-
als to save sales tax costs. 

B. Provide Bid Phase Services for the rebid Process, including the following:  
1. Provide bidding documents in electronic form to the Client and a plan house for distribution during bidding.  

 2. Attend and conduct a pre-bid meeting. 
 3. Receive and respond to contractor or supplier pre-bid questions. 
 4. Prepare and distribute addenda as required to clarify the bidding documents.  
 5. Assist in evaluation of bids and prepare a recommendation for award of contract.  
 6. Assist in the preparation of the construction contract and supporting documents. 
 
C. Increased costs resulting from project extension: 
The original contract was signed on June 26, 2013 and anticipated an eight week schedule for completion of design and 
four-month construction duration. Based on this schedule, all services were anticipated to be complete by December, 
2013. Due to delays beyond SGJJR control, services are likely to extend at least an additional year.  
 
Mr. Jackson has asked for a reduced sum given JJR’s eng ineering estimates as well as a not to exceed contract amount.  
Mr. Wolmutt has not produced these documents at this time. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  $13,640 in additional expenses. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Zeke Jackson 
Village Administrator 

. 
 
 
        

70

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


 

 

June 4, 2014 
 
Zeke Johnson, Village Administrator 
Village of Sister Bay 
2383 Maple Drive 
Sister Bay, WI  54234 
 
Re: Proposal for Professional Services 

Sister Bay Beach Expansion 
 
Dear Zeke, 
 
The following letter modifies the existing Professional Services Contract between SmithGroupJJR (“SGJJR”) and the 
Village of Sister Bay (the “Client”) for the referenced project dated June 24, 2013.  These modifications are based on 
conversations between SGJJR and the Client over the past several months. 
 
Additional Services include the following: 
 
A. Modify Construction Documents to incorporate agreed-upon revisions summarized below: 
 

1. Remove specification requirement that Contractor perform field surveys during construction.  
Instead, the Village will hire a surveyor under a separate contract. 

 
2. Allow use of either armor stone or smaller stone for breakwater underlayer. 
 
3. Remove requirement that stone be obtained from a USCOE-certified quarry.  Maintain requirement 

that stone meet USCOE requirements but verify through a 3rd-party inspector hired by the Village. 
 
4. Provide general updates to construction documents including completion dates, labor rates, 

advertisement, etc. 
 
5. Remove requirement that Contractor purchase materials.  We understand that the Village will 

purchase materials to save sales tax costs. 
 

B. Provide Bid Phase Services for the rebid Process, including the following: 
 

1. Provide bidding documents in electronic form to the Client and a plan house for distribution during 
bidding. 

 
2. Attend and conduct a pre-bid meeting. 
 
3. Receive and respond to contractor or supplier pre-bid questions. 
 
4. Prepare and distribute addenda as required to clarify the bidding documents. 
 
5. Assist in evaluation of bids and prepare a recommendation for award of contract. 
 
6. Assist in the preparation of the construction contract and supporting documents. 

 
 

71



 Zeke Johnson 
 June 4, 2014 
 Page 2 of 3 

 

C. Increased costs resulting from project extension: 
 

The original contract was signed on June 26, 2013 and anticipated an eight week schedule for completion of 
design and four-month construction duration.  Based on this schedule, all services were anticipated to be 
complete by December, 2013.  Due to delays beyond SGJJR control, services are likely to extend at least an 
additional year.  The extended schedule has resulted in increased SGJJR coordination, project management, 
and labor costs.  

 
Schedule 
 
Basic Services anticipate completion in conformance with the following: 
 

Milestone Complete Week Of 

90% Bid Documents 30-Jun-14 

100% Bid Documents 14-Jul-14 

Advertise For Bids 11-Aug-14 

Open Bids 8-Sept-14 

Notice to Proceed Issued 14-Oct-14 
 
Compensation 
 
Below is a breakdown of the estimated fees for additional services by task: 
 

Task Labor 

Expense 
(Including 

Plan House 
Fee) Total 

Construction Document Updates $2,700 $120 $2,820 

Bid/Award $5,700 $1,120 $6,820 
Additional Costs Due to 
Extension $4,000 $4,000 

Total Additional Fee $12,400 $1,240 $13,640 
 
Based on this, revise COMPENSATION, as follows: 
 
DELETE the first sentence and REPLACE with the following: 
 
The CLIENT shall compensate SmithGroupJJR for the Basic Scope of Services, in accordance with the conditions of 
this agreement for a lump sum fee of $107,640. 
 
 
 
   

72



 Zeke Johnson 
 June 4, 2014 
 Page 3 of 3 

 

 
This document will serve as an agreement between us, and you may indicate your acceptance by signing in the space 
provided below and returning one (1) signed copy for our files. 

 
     
SmithGroupJJR (Signature)  Owner (Signature)  
 
 
     
(Printed name and title)  (Printed name and title)  
 
 
     
Date  Date 
 

73



Administrative (1) Historical Society (1) Utilities (3)

Dave Lienau Chair Nora Zacek Liaison Pat Duffy Chair

Scott Baker

Bay Shore Oversight Com. (4) 3+1 Library Commission (3) 1+2 Shane Solomon

Dave Lienau Chair Pam Abshire

Patrick Duffy Virginia Phelan Scenic Byways (1)

Shane Solomon Alan Strack Scott Baker

Paige Funkhouser Ex Officio Zeke Jackson Alternate

Parks  Property & Streets (4) 3+1

DCEDC (1) Dave Lienau Chair Zoning Board of Appeals (7)

Scott Baker John Clove Tom Sadler, Chair 2015

Zeke Jackson Ex Officio Scott Baker Patricia Wisner 2015

Sharon Doersching Paul Soper 2016

Marina (7) 3+2+2 Deb Duren 2017

John Clove Chair Personnel (3) Michael Walker 2017

Shane Solomon Pat Duffy Chair Mike Termini Alternate

Pat Duffy Nora Zacek VACANT Alternate

Greg Sunstrom Pam Abshire

Kevin Roberts Administration and Benefits Oversight Committee (5)

VACANT Alternate Plan Commission (8) 3+4+1 Dave Lienau

Jeff Flegel Alternate Dave Lienau Chair Pam Abshire

Shane Solomon Pat Duffy

Marina Fest (3) 1+1+1 Scott Baker Citizen Member (VACANT)

VACANT (Parks Rep) Co-Chair Don Howard 2017

Shane Solomon (Marina Rep) Co-Chair Marge Grutzmacher 2017 Waterfront Oversight Committee (6)

John Clove (Trustee) Eric Lundquist 2016 Dave Lienau

Nate Bell 2016 John Clove

Economic Development (8) 7+1 VACANT Ex Officio VACANT

Larry Gajda Chair Shane Solomon

Dave Lienau SBAA (1) SBAA Rep. (VACANT)

Mike Flood Shane Solomon Liaison Citizen Member (VACANT)

Jim Grasse

Denise Bhirdo Com. & Technology (4) 3+1 Water, Wastewater &

Dan Mortier Dave Lienau Chair    Storm Sewer (3)

Jenn Dahl VACANT Pat Duffy

Eric Lundquist Alternate John Clove Scott Baker

Bill Chaudoir Ex-Officio Nate Bell Shane Solomon

Zeke Jackson Ex-Officio

Tourism Zone Commission (2)

Finance (3) Zeke Jackson

Shane Solomon Chair Nora Zacek

Pat Duffy

Dave Lienau Teen Center (8) 1+5+2

Pam Abshire Liaison

Fire Board (2) Krystian Hallet President

Pat Duffy Jon Massad Vice Pres.

Scott Baker Debra Anderson Sec./Treas.

Elizabeth Moriarty

Fire District Exp. Com. (3) 1+1+1 Angie Hallett

Ken Church VACANT

Chris Hecht - Fire Chief VACANT

James Voeks - Fire Fighter

2014 Sister Bay Board, Committee and Commission Appointments
(Revised June 17, 2014)

74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1 

THURSDAY, MAY 22, 2014 2 

(APPROVAL PENDING) 3 

 4 
The Village of Sister Bay Finance Committee meeting of May 22, 2014, was called to order by 5 
Chairman Shane Solomon at 2:05 PM. 6 
 7 
Present: Chairman Shane Solomon and Committee Members Pat Duffy and Dave Lienau, Village 8 
Administrator Zeke Jackson and Finance Director Juliana Neuman 9 
 10 
Approval of the Agenda 11 
Duffy moved and Lienau seconded. Motion carried—all Ayes. 12 
Approval of minutes as attached 13 
Lienau moved and Duffy seconded approval of the minutes of the March 31, 2014 Finance Committee 14 
meeting as presented. Motion carried—all Ayes. 15 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public 16 
None 17 
 18 
Discussion Items 19 
1.  Consider a motion to convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statute §19.85(1)(e) 20 
to deliberate or negotiate the purchase of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conduct 21 
other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a Closed Session. 22 
Lienau moved and Duffy seconded.  Roll call:  Lienau–Yes     Duffy—Yes Solomon--Yes   23 
 24 
2. Consider a motion to reconvene into Open Session. 25 
Solomon moved and Lienau seconded.  Roll call:    Solomon–Yes     Duffy—Yes Lienau--Yes 26 
 27 
3. Consider a motion to take action, if required. 28 
Solomon made a motion to put the Old School property back on the market at Fair Market Value. Duffy 29 
seconded the motion and all voted Aye. 30 
 31 
4. Discussion on Major Projects List. 32 
Jackson began by reviewing to the Department of Transportation’s preliminary credit list for the Bay 33 
Shore Drive project. A new slip liner for the Casperson-Johnson outfall pipe was included on that list, 34 
which led to discussion on whether it is the Village’s responsibility to replace a private outfall pipe. 35 
Community members recalled a plan to re-route the water, in keeping with the plan to eliminate any 36 
outfalls into the Marina.  Lienau related the history of the outfall:  it was put in when Clyde Casperson’s 37 
owned the property in front of the Johnson Marina to provide overflow for the pond on the Casperson 38 
and Johnson properties on the east side of Bay Shore Drive. The DNR was not consulted and 39 
disapproved of the outfall upon learning about it later. 40 
Pavilion:  Jackson reported that a new electric service to serve both the pavilion and the park will have 41 
to be installed at an expense of about $8000. Lienau recalled that this cost was deliberately not 42 
included in the Pavilion contract but should be added to the total project cost, which showed an under-43 
run of $4745 before the electrical costs. 44 
Economic Development: A community development block grant to be used for downtown 45 
redevelopment has apparently been awarded by WEDC and transferred to the Department of 46 
Administration, but the award letter is missing and the exact amount (up to $25,000) is unknown. 47 
Road Repairs:  Funds have been allocated by the Village Board. 48 
Bay Shore Drive Sewer and Water Relay:  Utilities might need a bank loan after cash reserves have been 49 
spent. The maximum anticipated shortfall is $300,000. 50 
 51 

96



2 

Beach:  Maximum amount of grant award(s) = $800,000, but we won’t know until September.  1 
Overhead Line Burial:  Baylake Bank has agreed to provide a loan of up to $950,000 for 10 years, with 2 
an annual rate of 1.852% for the first 5 years. 3 
Visitor Center:  There’s been a Post Office personnel change at higher levels; no answer on relocating. 4 
Village Hall/Waterfront:  Jackson has asked Dan Roriarty, the Pavilion architect, to look at the Village 5 
Hall with additional bathrooms in mind for the beach.  6 
 7 
5. Discussion on Stony Ridge Development. 8 
Jackson reported on negotiations to date regarding a development agreement with Keith Garot. A loan 9 
from the Village for the installation of infrastructure (including sewer and water service, storm sewer 10 
and detention pond, street construction, electrical connections and engineering) would provide 11 
financing for Garot without impacting his ability to borrow from his bank for other projects. An 12 
amortization schedule prepared by Neuman based on a $600,000 loan with Baylake Bank for 5 years at 13 
2.112% shows a monthly payment of $10,546. The Village would protect its interests with assessments 14 
on the properties when they sell and with monthly payments from Garot during interim periods. 15 
Monitoring repayment on a monthly basis would provide the Village with better control over the 16 
project, with foreclosure on the property as the consequence of non-payment.  17 
 18 
Duffy asked about the plan for a lift station when the Village would prefer gravity. Jackson replied that 19 
the engineer has assured us that the system can be built for gravity but could use a lift station until (or if) 20 
the necessary easement becomes available. Duffy objected to loaning $600,000 when Garot had 21 
previously told the Utility Committee that he was prepared to go ahead with the lift station option. 22 
Solomon also expressed reservations about making this loan. Jackson pointed out that we don’t have 23 
any other interested developers. Jackson also drew a diagram of the current plan, showing a cluster of 4 24 
single-family units, 3 apartment buildings, 2 condos and some garage/storage buildings, all with access 25 
off of Northwood Drive. 26 
 27 
Jackson would like to offer interest-only payments for the first six months before the amortization 28 
schedule takes effect. The project has been scaled down because the Village isn’t willing to loan the $1 29 
million Garot had previously requested.  30 
 31 
Jackson is convinced that Garot can have the infrastructure work done at less cost than the Village 32 
because of prevailing wage laws. Neuman asked about the possibility of loaning the $600,00 in smaller 33 
increments that would be tied to completion of specific phases of the project. Jackson said he had 34 
discussed this possibility with Steve Jacobson, who felt that this would impede progress on the project.  35 
 36 
Jackson has not yet developed a repayment schedule, but Garot has offered a minimum payment of 37 
$128,335 per year and wants to pay interest-only for the first six months. Neuman expressed concern 38 
about Garot’s track record on payment of bills from the Village. Jackson replied that the Village will be 39 
able to institute foreclosure on the property. He would also like to build some sort of a penalty into the 40 
agreement. 41 
 42 
Neuman asked how the special assessments on the property will fit into the repayment schedule. When 43 
houses are sold, Jackson would like Garot to remit the assessment amounts to the Village in addition to 44 
his regular monthly payment. This would ultimately result in a faster repayment of the loan. However, 45 
Neuman expressed doubt that Garot will see it that way; he is more likely to take the position that an 46 
assessment payment relieves him of the need to make monthly payments for a time. Solomon suggested 47 
that any assessment payment should count toward the monthly loan payment. Lienau noted that 48 
assessment payments should come directly to the Village in full at the time of sale; i.e., that Garot 49 
would not be allowed to receive the assessments and pay only his monthly loan amount. Instead, as 50 
Solomon had proposed, the full amount of the assessment would come to the Village from the buyer 51 
and would serve as a prepayment on the monthly loan schedule. 52 

97



3 

 1 
Discussion followed about penalties for lapses in payment. Solomon proposed keeping it simple but 2 
making the penalties stiff, since we are not a bank. Jackson proposed a 60-day window prior to 3 
foreclosure proceedings. Lienau noted that the apartment buildings will provide a strong anchor for the 4 
project, since those are in high demand. 5 
 6 
Potential impact on taxpayers would be positive because of TIF revenue, so long as the Village’s 7 
agreement with Garot is strong enough to provide for loan repayment. This borrow should not affect 8 
taxes. 9 
 10 
Garot also has a loan from the Bank of Luxemburg in the amount of $1.5 million for construction of 3 11 
apartment buildings and 50 storage units. Since that bank could also foreclose, the Village’s agreement 12 
with Garot should provide protection against losing out to the bank. The agreement could require that 13 
Garot authorize the Bank of Luxemburg to provide the Village with credit information on demand. 14 
 15 
Lienau pointed out that limiting increases to the CIP fund for the next few years would provide funding 16 
for new debt without a large levy increase. Neuman will provide projections. Lienau also reminded the 17 
group that the Village’s heavy debt load originated with the decision to purchase the waterfront 18 
property and that it is now necessary to follow through on those plans. 19 
 20 
The final consensus was that Jackson be charged with drafting a development agreement with Garot, as 21 
per the preceding discussion. Jackson noted that Paul Thompson (of Hutchinson, Shockey, Erley) is 22 
advising on this. Duffy suggested that we should first obtain assurance that the Village will have first 23 
position as to foreclosure proceedings, meaning access to credit information from the Bank of 24 
Luxemburg. 25 
 26 
6. Discussion on Marina Capital Projects List; consider a motion to recommend for approval. 27 
Lienau moved to recommend approval of the Marina capital projects list as presented. Duffy seconded 28 
the motion and all voted Aye. Discussion to clarify followed:  this motion approves the transfer of 29 
$25,000 from the Village to the Marina for the projects as described.  30 
 31 
 7. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a committee, official 32 
or employee.  33 
-- Jackson will try to track down the amount of the WEDC grant for the re-development contract. 34 
-- Jackson will investigate abandonment of the private outfall at the Marina. 35 
-- Neuman to determine whether Utilities will need to borrow for the Sewer & Water relay. 36 
-- Jackson to draft the development agreement with Garot, to be reviewed at a future meeting. 37 
-- Neuman to complete a spreadsheet showing the impact of new debt on taxes. 38 
 39 
Adjournment 40 
It was agreed that the meeting scheduled for May 29th would be cancelled. 41 
At 4:30 PM Solomon moved and Duffy seconded that the meeting be adjourned. Motion carried. 42 
 43 
Respectfully submitted, 44 

 45 
Juliana Neuman 46 
Village Finance Director 47 
Name: h:\files\active\agendas\finance\2014\2014_05\05222014 finance minutes - unapproved version.docx Created: 48 
5/21/2013 9:14 AM Printed: 6/13/2014 11:56 AM Author: Juliana Neuman Last Saved By: Juliana Neuman 49 

98



Sister Bay & Liberty Grove Fire Board Meeting 
June 2, 2014 

 
The meeting was called to order June 2, 2014 at 8:00 am by Lou Covotsos 
 
Roll Call: Lou Covotsos, Pat Duffy, Scott Baker, Frank Forkert 
 
In attendance Chris Hecht, Bill Randall 
 
A motion was made by Frank Forkert to approve the agenda, seconded by Scott Baker. Motion passed 
with no discussion. 
 
A motion was made by Pat Duffy to approve the minutes of the previous meeting, seconded by Lou 
Covotsos. Motion passed with no discussion. 
 
There was no public input. 
 
Discussion Items: 
 
1) Chief’s Report 

a) Fire calls are up by 10 and EMS calls are up by 6 over last year.   
b) New SCBAs are in service and the fire department members have been trained.  The SCBA grant 

was 90% grant money and 10% fire department funds. We were able to sell the old SCBAs for 
$10,935.00 for net profit of $2,500. The money from the sale of the old SCBAs goes into the 
grant fund to be used for future grants. There is about $2,000.00 left in the grant. We have 
applied for an extension on the grant and to be able to use the fund to upgrade the training 
room sound system. There will be a line item in the budget to maintain the grant fund. 

c) The FEMA radio communications grant times out May 21, 2014. There is still work to be done. 
We filed for an extension and it was granted. The extension is until October 15, 2014. That 
should be sufficient time to finish the grant. The FEMA grant is a 90/10%. The department’s 
portion is $125,000.00. We are using the grant fund to pay for this. The county has underwritten 
the grant and is reimbursing us for the grant.  

d) The DNR grant is open and due by July 1, 2014. The DNR grant is a 50/50% grant and is used for 
equipment for wildland fires. The fire fighters association usually pays for the matching amount. 

e) The Northern Door First Responders Association (501c3) is sending out a letter asking for 
donations to support the Community Based CPR program. 

f) MABAS (Mutual Aid Box Alarm System) contracts have been signed by all of the municipalities in 
Door County and forwarded to the state MABAS board. The MABAS board will be voting on June 
12, 2014 to accept us. After acceptance we will start to set up the process for MABAS. 

g) On June 29, 2014 we will have a preconstruction meeting on the new tanker to finalize the 
design and construction. The project is proceeding as planned. We have started the process to 
sell Engine 7. Its value is about $35,000. 

h) There was a car show on the Sunday of Memorial Day week end. The Fire Department 
participated in the show. 

i) We are working on the EMS provider licenses. 
j) The Fire Fighter Association has been asked to sell pancakes during Old Ellison Bay Days. The 

Profits will go to support Door County’s Secret Santa. 

99



2) Clerk/Treasurer Report  
a) Copies of the fire calls since the last meeting were passed out. There were about 8 false alarms 

in the 2 month period.  
b) List of transactions since the last meeting was passed out. 
c) A spread sheet of 2014 budget to date expenses through May 31, 2014 was passed out. 

 
3) Community Based CPR – Discussion / Action  

a) The program is ongoing. We have 6 people who are qualified to be instructors for CPR/AED, CPR 
PRO, and Blood Born Pathogens. 

b) The First Responders are raising money to support the program and to get AEDs to by place in 
the community. 

c)  We are planning to hold a class June 7, 2014 for Fire Fighters. This is beta test of the class. 
 

4) Sprinkler Ordinance – Discussion / Action  
a) The state has said the community cannot have a more restrictive sprinkler ordinance than the 

state has. 
b) The new state law is more restrictive than it was in the past.  
c) Under the new state law, any building that is currently has sprinkler must maintain them.   
d) A motion was made by Lou Covotsos that the board recommends to the town and village that 

they rescind their sprinkler ordnance in favor of the state ordnance, seconded by Scott Baker 
passed with no discussion. 

  
5) Fire District – Discussion 

a) There were no Fire District meetings.  
  

6) Set Date for Next Meeting  
a) Aug 18, 8:00 am. Sister Bay fire station. 

 
A motion was made by Lou Covotsos to adjourn, seconded by Pat Duffy Motion passed with no 
discussion. 
 
Submitted by 
Bill Randall 
Fire Board Clerk 

 
  
 

100



Sister Bay / Liberty Grove Library Commission 
                                     Meeting May 13, 2014 
 
The meeting of the Sister Bay / Liberty Grove Library Commission was called to order by 
Virginia Phelan at 1:05 P.M. 
 
Members Present: Virginia Phelan, Margot Warch, Frank Forkert, Pam Abshire, Henry Timm 
and Ralph Blankenburg. 
 
Absent:  Betty Curzon & Allen Strack 
 
Public Input:  None 
 
Review and Approve the Minutes of the April 8, 2014 Meeting: 
Frank Forkert moved and Margot Warch seconded a motion to approve the minutes of the April 
8, 2014 meeting as corrected. The motion passed 4-0. 
 
Review and approve payment of bills: 
Wulf Brothers Furnace Inspection and Service $468.95 
Wisconsin Public Service Electric $701.18 
Village of Sister Bay Snow Shoveling $1,054.73 
Action Electric Repair Entry Heater $417.83 
U.S Postmaster P.O. Box $60.00 
Karen Pearson Accident Replace Jeans $21.04 
Village of Sister Bay Propane $350.99 
Sparkle Cleaning Service General Cleaning $780.00 
Schenck SC Audit $1,800.00 
Frontier Telephone $119.62 
Kirby Built Sales Benches & Tables $8,418.85 
Total 

 
$14,193.19 

Pam Abshire moved and Virginia Phelan seconded a motion to approve the payment of the bills.  
The motion passed 4-0. 
 
Librarians Report 

None 
 
Audit: 
Ralph Blankenburg presented the format of the audit.  Members were asked to read it and bring 
any questions back to the next meeting.  Ralph explained where the auditor’s recommendations 
were locater on the report.  Ralph said that the auditors were given a flash drive with our 
QuickBooks files on it and they were able to examine our books in advance. 
 
Tree Replacement: 
Prior to the meeting Betty Curzon asked Ralph Blankenburg if the dead tree outside her window 
could be replaced. 
After discussion Virginia Phelan moved to approve $300 to remove and replace the tree.  Frank 
Forkert seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4-0. 

101



 
Back Yard Project: 
Frank Forkert asked is Ralph Blankenburg if he could present a report update on what has been 
spent on the back yard project to date. 
We have received the benches and tables and they now need to be assembled. 
Ralph Blankenburg showed the members the folder that he and Betty Curzon prepared to show 
donors the benches and tables with the prices listed on each. 
After discussion of the gazebo and its location, it was decided to have John Meredith come to 
the next meeting to show us possible relocation.  
Dedication will be on July 12 @ 11:00 A.M. with refreshments in the community room.   
Henry Timm will be putting the agenda and invitations together and arrange printing. 
 
Committee Reports: 
None. 
 
Next Meeting: 

June 10th at 1:00 p.m. 
 

Adjourn: 
It was moved by Pam Abshire and seconded by Margot Warch to adjourn at 2:30 P. M. 
 
Submitted by: Ralph Blankenburg. 
 

 

102



 1 

MARINA COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 2 

TUESDAY, JUNE 3, 2014 3 

Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Fire Station – 2258 Mill Road 4 

(APPROVAL PENDING) 5 
 6 
The June 3, 2014 meeting of the Marina Committee was called to order by Chairperson John 7 
Clove at 2:06 P.M. 8 
 9 
Present:  Chairperson Clove, and members Pat Duffy, Fuzzy Sunstrom, Kevin Roberts, and Jeff 10 
Flegel. 11 
 12 
Others:  Jim Robinson of Shoreline Charters. 13 
 14 
Staff Members:  Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Marina Manager Wendy Tatzel, and Ad-15 
ministrative Assistant Janal Suppanz. 16 
 17 
Approval of the agenda: 18 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Sunstrom that the Agenda for the June 3, 2014 19 
meeting of the Marina Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 20 
 21 
Approval of minutes as published: 22 
As to the minutes for the April 8, 2014 meeting of the Marina Committee: 23 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Sunstrom that the minutes for the April 8, 2014 24 
meeting of the Marina Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 25 
 26 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 27 
Clove asked if anyone wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item.  28 
 29 
Jim Robinson indicated that a few days ago his Chris Craft caught on fire out on the water. He is 30 
still waiting to hear what the insurance adjuster’s decision will be, but if the boat is “totaled” or 31 
it will be too costly to repair, he may request that he be allowed to dock a different boat at the 32 
Marina. It was the consensus that this is a decision which should be left up to the Marina Man-33 
ager.  The Committee members stressed that if Tatzel does allow Robinson to dock a different 34 
boat at the Marina, documentation must be provided which proves that the replacement vessel 35 
has passed all Coast Guard inspections and is fully insured.  36 
 37 
Jackson noted that in the future Village meeting agendas will look a little different and meetings 38 
will proceed in a slightly different fashion.  From now on, before discussion even takes place 39 
regarding any “action items” motions must first be made. Jackson also cautioned the Committee 40 
members to be fully cognizant of the provisions of the Open Meetings Law at all times.  41 
 42 
Business Items: 43 
Item No. 1. Discussion regarding short term planning for Marina improvements for the 2014 44 
season: 45 
Tatzel reported that the new air conditioning units were installed in the boaters’ restrooms yes-46 
terday. Remote operation of those units will be possible. Samples of countertops have been re-47 
ceived and measurements have been also been taken for privacy panels. She will be requesting 48 
estimates for painting of the boaters’ restrooms and is also investigating the types of keyless 49 

103



Minutes of the June 3, 2014 Meeting of the Marina Committee 

 

 

-2- 

 

locks which are available. An update on the status of the renovations will be provided at the 1 
next Marina Committee Meeting. 2 
   3 
Item No. 2. Consider a motion to discuss and recommend that the Village Board adopt Reso-4 
lution No. 288, seeking RBF Grant Funding from the DNR: 5 
Tatzel is in the process of preparing a grant application for RBF Grant Funding from the DNR 6 
for public boating restroom renovations at the Marina. If the application is approved the DNR 7 
will fund 50% of the amount needed for the improvements. A draft of a required Resolution 8 
and an applicable public notice were included in the meeting packets. 9 
 10 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Roberts that the Marina Committee recommends 11 
that the Village Board adopt Resolution No. 233, seeking RBF Grant Funding from the DNR, as 12 
presented.   13 
 14 
The Committee members jointly reviewed the previously mentioned documents and it was the 15 
consensus that they are both acceptable. 16 
 17 
A vote was taken on the previously mentioned motion and it carried – All ayes. 18 
 19 
Item No. 3.  Discussion regarding long term planning for the Marina: 20 
Tatzel indicated that she recently met Rick from Port-A-Pier and asked what it would take to 21 
make “B” Dock a floating pier. She is looking for maps of the Village’s docks for Rick to review 22 
and will provide further information to the Committee members as soon as it is available. Sev-23 
eral of the Committee members voiced concerns about the fact that after other dock improve-24 
ments were made bubblers were required even though the engineer working on the project did 25 
not originally think they were necessary. They also suggested that Tatzel contact a local marine 26 
contractor to see what he would suggest.  27 
 28 
Several of the Committee members indicated that they believe it would be beneficial to install a 29 
fuel dock at the Marina. Tatzel and Jackson will investigate the various cost and logistical factors 30 
which will come into play and provide that information to the Committee members ASAP. The 31 
suggestion was made that under-water fully contained fuel storage units be considered.  32 
    33 
Item No. 4.  Discussion regarding the Marina PILOT:  34 
In the near future work will commence on the 2015 budget. The Marina’s budget is currently 35 
very tight, but market conditions dictate that rate increases are not an option.  36 
 37 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Duffy that Tatzel shall send a letter to the Finance 38 
Committee requesting that a permanent reduction of the Marina PILOT be considered. Motion 39 
carried – All ayes. 40 
  41 
Item No. 5. Discussion regarding the creation of a “Friends of the Marina” group: 42 
The suggestion has been made that a “Friends of the Marina” group be established. If such a 43 
group existed there would be an avenue for people to make tax deductible donations to the 44 
Marina and/or fund Marina improvements. It was the consensus that this would be an excellent 45 
idea. Tatzel and Jackson were asked to look into the requirements for establishing a 501(c)(3) 46 
corporation. They will report their findings at the next meeting of the Marina Committee.       47 
 48 
 49 

104



Minutes of the June 3, 2014 Meeting of the Marina Committee 

 

 

-3- 

 

Item No. 6. Discussion regarding marina activities with Wendy Tatzel, Marina Manager: 1 

 Because of the fact that Charter Communications has converted to digital tele-2 
vision status individual converter boxes will be required for all the slips. This is a 3 
very costly option and simply is not practical. Tatzel is looking into other televi-4 
sion options which are available, including Dish Network and DirectTV.  5 

 6 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Clove that the preferred 7 
course of action with respect to provision of television service at the 8 
Sister Bay Marina would be to disconnect Charter television service 9 
and ramp up the WiFi capabilities at the Marina, thereby allowing 10 
boaters to connect to NetFlix or HuLu, but still maintain HD televi-11 
sion service at the Boathouse. Another option would be to allow 12 
boaters to obtain tokens for DVD rentals at a local business which is 13 
near the Marina. Motion carried – All ayes. 14 

 15 
Tatzel was asked to make the necessary arrangements ASAP.  16 
 17 

 There are currently very few boathouse reservations made for July and Septem-18 
ber. The suggestion was made that other rental options, including Vacation 19 
Rentals By Owner or utilization of other property management firms be investi-20 
gated. Tatzel and Jackson will look into those options and report their findings 21 
at the next meeting. 22 

 23 

 Spreadhseets on which projections for slip reservations were made were in-24 
cluded in the meeting packets, and the Committee members jointly reviewed 25 
those documents. So far reservations for this year are up over last year. Tatzel 26 
attributes the increase in reservations to the nice weather.  27 

 28 

 The lateral for the Village Hall and Boathouse will not be worked on until fall, 29 
and, therefore, no issues will arise with the rental of the boathouse. 30 

 31 

 Planning for Marina Fest is ongoing and appears to be going well. This year’s 32 
event should be “bigger and better”.  33 

 34 
Item No. 5. Consider a motion to discuss matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred 35 
to a committee, official or employee: 36 
The next meeting of the Marina Committee was scheduled for 2:00 P.M. on Thursday, July 10, 37 
2014. 38 
 39 
The following issues will be addressed at that meeting: 40 

 Update on the status of the renovations to the boaters’ restrooms. 41 

 Consider a motion to establish a “Friends of the Marina” Group. 42 

 Update on the progress which has been made with respect to provision of television 43 
viewing options for slip holders at the Sister Bay Marina. 44 

 Discussion regarding installation of a fuel dock at the Marina. 45 

 Report on the rental options which are available for the boathouse. 46 
 47 
 48 

105



Minutes of the June 3, 2014 Meeting of the Marina Committee 

I:\2014 Agendas\Marina\2014\2014_06\060314 Marina Committee Meeting Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 06/03/2014;  Print Date:  6/13/2014 3:31 PM 

-4- 

 

Adjournment: 1 
A motion was made by Sunstrom, seconded by Flegel to adjourn the meeting of the Marina 2 
Committee at 4:12 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 3 
 4 
Respectfully submitted,  5 

 6 
Janal Suppanz,  7 
Administrative Assistant 8 

106



PARKS, PROPERTIES & STREETS COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 4, 2014 2 

SISTER BAY-LIBERTY GROVE FIRE STATION – 2258 MILL ROAD 3 

 (APPROVAL PENDING) 4 

 5 

The June 4, 2014 meeting of the Parks, Properties and Streets Committee was called to 6 
order by Village Administrator Zeke Jackson at 2:02 P.M. 7 
 8 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Doersching that John Clove shall act as 9 
Temporary Chair of the Parks Committee until such time as Committee Chair Dave Lienau 10 
arrives. 11 
 12 
Present:  Members John Clove, Sharon Doersching and Scott Baker.  Committee Chair 13 
Dave Lienau arrived at 2:14 P.M. 14 
 15 
Staff Members: Zeke Jackson, Village Administrator, Steve Mann, Facilities Manager, Steve 16 
Jacobson, Utilities Manager, Parks Department employees Robbie LeClair and Aaron Bley, 17 
and Janal Suppanz, Administrative Assistant.  18 
 19 
Others:   Tony Anheuser, John Mory, and Sean Ryan. 20 
 21 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 22 
Mann introduced Robbie LeClair, who is now doing landscaping work for the Village and 23 
caring for the Village’s flower beds. Mann  believes LeClair is trying very hard to make the 24 
flower beds look good and is very pleased with the work he is doing. Since LeClair has 25 
been doing the landscaping for the Village significant cost savings have been realized, but 26 
the funds allocated for the purchase of flowers have now been exhausted. LeClair 27 
indicated that he loves his job and is very surprised by the number of favorable comments 28 
which have already been made about the Village’s flowerbeds. He publicly thanked the 29 
employees at Jerry’s Flower for all the advice they have provided to him thus far.  30 
 31 
Doersching indicated that she has heard many favorable comments about LeClair and 32 
Aaron Bley, who also works for the Maintenance Department, and thanked both young 33 
men for all they do for the Village. The other Committee members concurred. 34 
 35 
At 2:14 P.M Chairperson Lienau arrived and assumed his duties. 36 
 37 
A snow plow accidentally struck the curb by the restrooms in Waterfront Park and 38 
damaged it after a spring snow storm, and according to the Village’s contract with the 39 
County the repairs are the Village’s responsibility. A letter which had been received from 40 
Zeise Construction was included in the meeting packets. In that letter Thomas Zeise 41 
indicates that the cost to remove and replace 18 LF of curb and gutter would be $981.00. 42 
The curb and gutter is a trip hazard, and, therefore, Zeise Construction will be replacing it 43 
ASAP. 44 
 45 
A copy of an e-mail from Lloyd Michalsen was included in the meeting packets and the 46 
Committee members jointly reviewed that document. In his e-mail Michalsen asks if the 47 
Village would allow him and some friends to play music in the Waterfront Park Gazebo on 48 

107



Village of Sister Bay Parks, Properties & Streets Committee Meeting Minutes – June 4, 2014 

- 2 - 

Tuesday evenings from 6:00 P.M. to 8:30 P.M. It was the consensus that this issue shall be 1 
fully addressed at the July 2, 2014 Parks Committee Meeting.  2 
 3 
Tony Anheuser indicated that during the third weekend in August he would like to conduct 4 
a motorcycle rally in the Village as a fund raiser for the Wounded Warriors Project. A 5 
primarily blacktopped surface will be required, and Anheuser is considering several 6 
locations in the Village, including the Sports Complex, the area of Waterfront Park off of 7 
Mill Road, or the parking lot at a local church. The Lions and American Legion will be 8 
asked to serve food and drinks at the rally. It was the consensus that this issue shall also be 9 
addressed at length at the July 2nd meeting of the Parks Committee. 10 
 11 
Jackson noted that in the future Village meeting agendas will look a little different and 12 
meetings will proceed in a slightly different fashion.  From now on, motions must be made 13 
before discussion even takes place regarding any “action items”. Jackson cautioned all the 14 
Committee members to be fully cognizant of the provisions of the Open Meetings Law at 15 
all times. 16 
 17 
Approval of minutes as published: 18 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the minutes for the April 9, 2014 19 
meeting of the Parks Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 20 
 21 
Approval of Agenda: 22 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Doersching that the Agenda for the June 4, 23 
2014 meeting of the Parks Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 24 
 25 
Business Items: 26 
Item No. 3. Consider a motion to act on John Mory’s request to establish a rest area for 27 
the Door County Century Bike Ride in Waterfront Park and establish an official route for 28 
that ride in the Village: 29 
A Facility Use Application, a map on which the proposed route for the 36th Annual Door 30 
County Century Bike Ride is depicted, and a Sign Permit Application which were 31 
submitted by John Mory and Sean Ryan were included in the meeting packets, and the 32 
Committee members jointly reviewed all of that documentation. Mory and Ryan would 33 
like to establish a rest area for the ride in Waterfront Park on Sunday, September 7, 2014. 34 
Students from Sturgeon Bay High School will be doing fund raising at the ride, and the 35 
same route as last year will be utilized. Mory estimates that the ride will bring 36 
approximately 1,500 people to Sister Bay. 37 
 38 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Clove that the Parks Committee approves John 39 
Mory and Sean Ryan’s request to establish a rest area for the Door County Century Bike 40 
Ride in Waterfront Park and establish an official route for that ride in the Village.  41 
 42 
Doersching indicated that she is very upset about the fact that no Gibraltar High School 43 
students or Northern Door youth groups were asked to conduct fund raising activities at 44 
the Sister Bay Century Bike Ride rest area last year. It would only make sense to involve 45 
those students as the rest area is “in their back yard”. Ryan and Mory indicated that they 46 
would not be opposed to partnering with Gibraltar School this year and will contact school 47 
representatives ASAP. They will keep Suppanz advised of the status of this issue.   48 
 49 

108



Village of Sister Bay Parks, Properties & Streets Committee Meeting Minutes – June 4, 2014 

- 3 - 

A vote was taken on the previously mentioned motion and it carried – All ayes. 1 
 2 
Item No. 1. Consider a motion to convene into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats., 3 
§19.85(1)(g) to confer with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering 4 
oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to 5 
litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved, and §19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or 6 
negotiate the purchase of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conduct 7 
other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a 8 
closed session: 9 
At 2:24 PM a motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Doersching that the Parks 10 
Committee convene into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats., §19.85(1)(g) to confer with 11 
legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice concerning 12 
strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or is likely to 13 
become involved, and §19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the purchase of public 14 
properties, the investing of public funds, or conduct other specified public business, 15 
whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. A roll call vote was 16 
taken on the motion, and the Committee members voted in the following fashion: 17 
 18 
   Baker  – Aye;             Clove  – Aye;  19 
   Doersching  – Aye.   Lienau  – Aye. 20 
Motion carried. 21 
 22 
Item No. 2. Consider a motion to reconvene into Open Session, and consider a motion to 23 
take action, if necessary: 24 
At 2:55 PM a motion was made by Lienau seconded by Baker that the Parks Committee 25 
reconvene into Open Session. A roll call vote was taken on that motion, and the 26 
Committee members again voted in the following fashion: 27 
 28 
   Baker  – Aye;             Clove  – Aye;  29 
   Doersching  – Aye.   Lienau  – Aye. 30 
 31 
Motion carried. 32 
 33 
No formal action was taken. 34 
 35 
Item No. 8. Consider a motion to act on requests for Memorial Benches: 36 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Doersching that a moratorium shall be 37 
imposed on placement of any new memorial benches in the downtown area until all the 38 
roadwork and waterfront projects have been completed.   39 
 40 
Mann indicated that there are potentially two new locations for memorial benches in 41 
Marina Park, but there are no more designated locations for memorial benches available in 42 
the downtown area. In accord with the Committee’s earlier directives the name of anyone 43 
requesting a memorial bench has been added to a waiting list, and a copy of that 44 
document was included in the meeting packets.  45 
 46 
A vote was taken on the previously mentioned motion and it carried – All ayes. 47 
 48 
 49 

109



Village of Sister Bay Parks, Properties & Streets Committee Meeting Minutes – June 4, 2014 

- 4 - 

It was the consensus that the two memorial benches that are available shall be assigned 1 
and placed at Mann’s discretion. 2 
 3 
Item No. 5. Consider a motion to review, discuss and act on the Door County Soil & 4 
Water Department’s comments on the Beach Project and JJR’s responses to those 5 
comments:  6 
Item No. 6. Consider a motion to discuss and act on a proposed contract amendment 7 
with JJR for the Beach Expansion Project: 8 
The bids for the beach project came in much higher than had been anticipated, and a 9 
document on which the comments of employees at the Door County Soil & Water 10 
Department and JJR’s responses to those comments were delineated, as well as a proposed 11 
contract amendment with respect to the beach expansion project which had been received 12 
from JJR, were included in the meeting packets. 13 
 14 
A motion was made by Doersching, seconded by Baker that the Parks Committee 15 
recommends that the Village Board approve the proposed contract amendment with JJR for 16 
the beach expansion project.  17 
 18 
The Committee members jointly reviewed the previously mentioned documents, and 19 
Jackson was asked to discuss the alternatives which were recommended by the Soil & 20 
Water Department employees with representatives of JJR prior to the June Village Board 21 
Meeting. 22 
 23 
A vote was taken on the previously mentioned motion and it carried – All ayes. 24 
 25 
Item No. 11. Consider a motion to act on a land use request from the Top o’ The Thumb 26 
Snowmobile Club, and review a proposed trail map: 27 
A copy of the snowmobile route which was approved last year and a land use request for 28 
the 2014/2015 snowmobile season were included in the meeting packets, and the 29 
Committee members jointly reviewed those documents. 30 
 31 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Clove that the snowmobile route map which 32 
was reviewed at this meeting is approved as presented and the Village Administrator shall 33 
see that the permission form for 2014/2015 is signed and returned to the Top O’ The 34 
Thumb Snowmobile Club ASAP.  35 
 36 
Mann pointed out that some snowmobilers do not stick to the designated trails. He also 37 
indicated that he would like to erect more snowmobile directional signage as well as a 38 
snow fence by the softball field to prevent snowmobilers from traveling in that area. It was 39 
the consensus that the TKH Ice Rink personnel shall be charged with policing 40 
snowmobilers’ actions at the Sports Complex.   41 
 42 
A vote was taken on the previously mentioned motion and it carried – All ayes. 43 
 44 
Item No. 10. Consider a motion to act on a request to amend the Folk Fest Facility Use 45 
Permit: 46 
A copy of an e-mail from Paul Collins, the organizer of Door County Folk Fest, was 47 
included in the meeting packets. In that e-mail Collins asks if Folk Fest participants could 48 
resume dancing and singing in Waterfront Park and on the pier on Thursday, July 10th 49 

110



Village of Sister Bay Parks, Properties & Streets Committee Meeting Minutes – June 4, 2014 

- 5 - 

from 7:30 P.M. to 8:30 P.M. 1 
 2 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the Parks Committee grants 3 
permission for the organizers of Folk Fest to resume dancing and singing in Waterfront Park 4 
and on the pier on Thursday, July 10, 2014 from 7:30 P.M. to sunset. Motion carried – All 5 
ayes. 6 
 7 
Item No. 4. Consider a motion to authorize the construction of a new swamp pump shack 8 
on Scandia Road: 9 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Doersching that Agenda Item No. 4 – 10 
Consider a motion to authorize the construction of a new swamp pump shack on Scandia 11 
Road, shall be tabled. Motion carried – All ayes. 12 
 13 
Item No. 9. Consider a motion to act on requests from the people who utilize the 14 
Community Garden: 15 
An e-mail which was received from Adrienne Marks, the Leader of the Sister Bay 16 
Community Garden Group, was included in the meeting packets. In her e-mail Marks asks 17 
that the Village provide trash containers and mow around the Community Garden. 18 
 19 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that Village employees will not mow 20 
around the community garden, but the gardeners are authorized to mow that area 21 
themselves. They may also create a rock pile alongside the garden, and the Village’s 22 
Maintenance employees will remove the rocks when the pile becomes excessive. A trash 23 
container will be placed by the garden on a trial basis, but if that container is misused or 24 
continually overflows it will be removed by Maintenance Department employees. Motion 25 
carried – All ayes. 26 
 27 
Item No. 13. Consider a motion to authorize the operation of an Open Air Market in 28 
Sister Bay and approve the Open Air Market Vendor Application and Operational 29 
Guidelines: 30 
Drafts of the Vendor Application Form and the Operational Guidelines for the Village’s 31 
Open Air Market were included in the meeting packets. 32 
 33 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the Parks Committee authorizes 34 
Jackson and Sully to operate the Open Air Market in accord with the directives of the 35 
Committee, and approves of the Vendor Application Form and the operational guidelines 36 
which were reviewed at this meeting.  37 
 38 
The Committee members jointly reviewed the previously mentioned documents, and 39 
during that review Jackson and Sully took note of several suggested revisions. It was the 40 
consensus that home grown and hand crafted items which are offered for sale at the Open 41 
Air Market may come from anywhere in Wisconsin. Further, if the owner of a Village of 42 
Sister Bay or Town of Liberty Grove business wishes to sell manufactured items at the 43 
Open Air Market that will be possible, but those items must also be available at his or her 44 
shop or store.  45 
 46 
Clove and Baker subsequently amended their motion to state that the Parks Committee 47 
authorizes Jackson and Sully to operate the Open Air Market in accord with the directives 48 
of the Committee, and approves of the Vendor Application Form and the operational 49 

111



Village of Sister Bay Parks, Properties & Streets Committee Meeting Minutes – June 4, 2014 

- 6 - 

guidelines which were reviewed at this meeting as revised. A vote was taken on the 1 
amended motion and it carried – All ayes. 2 
 3 
Item No. 12. Consider a motion to take action regarding maintenance of Fieldcrest Lane: 4 
Jackson was contacted by Don Howard, who asked what the Village’s intentions were with 5 
regard to maintaining Fieldcrest Lane, a private gravel road which has been dedicated to 6 
the Village. Jackson was asked to research the Village’s responsibilities with respect to 7 
dedicated private roadways. He will present his findings at the July  Parks Committee 8 
meeting.   9 
 10 
Item No. 14. Consider a motion to act on a request to allow public instruction at the 11 
beach/dock and adjust the fees for that activity: 12 
At the April 9th Parks Committee Meeting Alissa Jacobson of Bodyworks was granted 13 
permission to conduct Yoga classes at the beach and dock, with the Village Hall as a back-14 
up location, from June through August of 2014 on a one year trial basis. Use fees of $25 15 
plus tax per day were established. Since this is a new business and very few people are 16 
currently taking advantage of the class, the question has arisen as to whether the fee 17 
structure will deter Jacobson from continuing to operate her business.   18 
 19 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that Alissa Jacobson of Bodyworks shall 20 
be allowed to conduct outdoor exercise classes in Waterfront Park on a six month trial 21 
basis. During that time period Bodyworks will not be charged any fees unless an indoor 22 
Village facility is utilized. Motion carried with Doersching opposed. 23 
 24 
Item No. 15. Consider a motion to discuss and act on a suggestion that the old log school 25 
building in Gateway Park be donated to the Historical Society: 26 
The Sister Bay Historical Society has expressed interest in having the old log school 27 
building in Gateway Park moved out to the Corner of the Past. 28 
 29 
A motion was made by Doersching, seconded by Clove that if the Village does not have a 30 
use for the old log school building in Gateway Park or its historical school contents, the 31 
building and those contents shall be offered “as is” to the Sister Bay Historical Society, on 32 
the condition that the Historical Society must pay any and all associated moving expenses. 33 
Motion carried – All ayes. 34 
 35 
Item No. 7. Consider a motion to discuss and act on a proposal from Dimension IV for 36 
conceptual work on remodeling the Village Hall: 37 
It was the consensus that this issue shall be referred to the Waterfront Oversight 38 
Committee. 39 
 40 
Item No. 16. Report from Steve Mann on fall and winter activities: 41 
Mann introduced Aaron Bley, who is currently serving an internship with the Village, and 42 
indicated that he is very happy with all the work Bley has done thus far. 43 
He then gave the following oral report: 44 

 The members of the Dog Park group have informed him that they will be doing 45 
fund raising for improvements at the dog park. One of those improvements is 46 
installation of additional fencing. 47 

 The swimming buoys have been installed. It took quite a bit of effort to reposition 48 
the buoy anchors, but that has occurred. 49 

112



Village of Sister Bay Parks, Properties & Streets Committee Meeting Minutes – June 4, 2014 

 

 

- 7 - 

 The skate park equipment will be placed out at the Sports Complex tomorrow. 1 

 All the insulation has now been blown in at the Maintenance Building. 2 

 Some of the trees in the Village’s parks sustained damage over the course of the 3 
winter and are brown and appear to be quite dry. Mann intends to wait a while to 4 
see if the trees will “bounce back”. 5 

 Some of the sprinkler systems in Waterfront Park were adversely affected by the 6 
Utility Reconstruction Project. Representatives of The Sprinkler Company will be 7 
coming up next week to look at the systems and will attempt to reconstruct some of 8 
them.  9 

 An agreement was entered into with the owners of Jerry Flowers that they would 10 
provide guidance on maintenance of the Village’s flower beds on the condition that 11 
all the Village’s flowers be purchased from them. To date that arrangement has 12 
worked out very well. The Committee members reiterated that they think the 13 
flowers which have been planted on Village properties look very nice. 14 

 When work was being done on the Performance Pavilion Project the employees 15 
from Zeise Construction discovered an underground foundation and it was 16 
subsequently removed. Additional electrical charges were also realized as more 17 
outlets were installed. It is quite likely that fencing will be erected around the 18 
pavilion to prohibit people from walking on the newly seeded or sodded areas.   19 

 20 
Item No. 17. Consider a motion to discuss trackless maintenance: 21 
The trackless is in need of repair and will be hauled down to Bruce Municipal tomorrow. 22 
Mann will provide a report on the needed repairs at the next meeting. 23 
 24 
Item No. 18. Consider a motion to discuss other parks and streets activities: 25 
Jackson has asked the Door County Highway Department to patch the bad spots on 26 
Bluffside. 27 
 28 
Doersching noted that this year red, blue, white and yellow flowers will be planted in the 29 
Village’s flower pots. She will also see that the YMCA’s programs are promoted, and 30 
suggested that Village officials look into obtaining an electric vehicle charging station.  31 
 32 
Item No. 19. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to 33 
a committee, official or employee: 34 
The next meeting of the Parks Committee has been scheduled for Wednesday, July 2, 2014 35 
at 2:15 P.M. It was the consensus that the following issues shall be placed on the Agenda 36 
for that meeting: 37 

 Consider a motion to approve Lloyd Michalsen’s request to use the Waterfront Park 38 
Gazebo for jam sessions on Tuesday evenings from 6:00 P.M. to 8:00 P.M. 39 

 Consider a motion to approve Tony Anheuser’s request to conduct a motorcycle 40 
rally in the Village. 41 

 Consider a motion to discuss and act on maintenance of Fieldcrest Lane. 42 

 Consider a motion to discuss and act on the suggestion that an electric vehicle 43 
charging station be established in the Village. 44 

 45 
Adjournment: 46 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker to adjourn the meeting of the Parks 47 
Committee at 5:16 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes.  48 

113



Village of Sister Bay Parks, Properties & Streets Committee Meeting Minutes – June 4, 2014 

I:\2014 Agendas\Parks\2014\2014_06\060414 PPS Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 06/04/2014;  Last Printed: 6/13/2014 2:35:00 PM 

 

- 8 - 

Respectfully submitted,  1 

 2 
Janal Suppanz,  3 
Administrative Assistant 4 

114



PLAN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, APRIL 8, 2014 2 

Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Fire Station – 2258 Mill Road 3 

(APPROVAL PENDING) 4 
 5 
The April 8, 2014 meeting of the Plan Commission was called to order by Chairperson Dave 6 
Lienau at 5:34 P.M. 7 
 8 
Present:  Chairperson Lienau, and members Pat Duffy, Marge Grutzmacher, Don Howard, Scott 9 
Baker, and Nate Bell. 10 
 11 
Excused:  Hugh Mulliken and Eric Lundquist  12 
 13 
Others:  Ron Kane, Larry Gajda and Britt and Sara Unkefer 14 
 15 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, and Administrative Assistant Janal 16 
Suppanz. 17 
 18 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 19 
Lienau asked if anyone wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item. No one responded.  20 
 21 
Jackson read a letter which had been received from Britt Unkefer aloud. In that letter Unkefer 22 
asks that the Plan Commission consider amending the Village’s signage regulations in such 23 
fashion that businesses which border more than one street are allowed more flexibility. 24 
  25 
Approval of the agenda: 26 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Grutzmacher that the Agenda for the April 8, 2014 27 
meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 28 
 29 
Approval of minutes as published: 30 
As to the minutes for the February 4, 2014 meeting of the Plan Commission: 31 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Howard that the minutes for the February 4, 2014 32 
meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 33 
  34 
Business Items: 35 
Item No. 1. Consider approval of the Interpretive Guideline on Officially Mapped Streets: 36 
As requested Lienau, Baker, Mary Kay Shumway and Jackson did collaborate on making revi-37 
sions to the Interpretive Guideline on Officially Mapped Streets which was reviewed at the last 38 
meeting, and a draft of the revised document, which basically mirrors the document which was 39 
presented by Howard at the last meeting, was included in the meeting packets. The Commis-40 
sion members jointly reviewed the guideline and a minor typo. was pointed out.  41 
 42 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Howard that the Interpretive Guideline on Official-43 
ly Mapped Streets which was included in the  packets for this meeting is approved as amended. 44 
Motion carried – All ayes. 45 
 46 
Jackson noted that after he had published the Public Hearing Notices which are the subject of 47 
Agenda Item Nos. 2 and 3 he learned that Village protocol calls for the Plan Commission to 48 
discuss potential Zoning Code amendments and only conduct Public Hearings if and when a 49 
motion to that effect has been made. This was not the case in the municipalities where he 50 

115



Minutes of the April 8, 2014 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 

 -2-  

 

worked previously, and, therefore, he just went ahead and scheduled the hearings noted on the 1 
Agenda. He apologized for the oversight and indicated that it will never happen again.  2 
 3 
Item No. 2. Public Hearing and discussion regarding amendments to the provisions of 4 
§66.0302(d) of the Zoning Code which relate to signage for temporary uses; temporary sus-5 
pension of the number of days delineated in §66.0722(a) of the Zoning Code; and creation of 6 
a sunset clause in §66.0722(a)(1) of the Zoning Code: 7 
The Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction and Utility Line Burial Projects will cause disruption to 8 
normal traffic patterns. The changes in rights-of-way will also cause significant changes in loca-9 
tions/placement of ground signs, and, therefore a draft of proposed text amendments which will 10 
allow area businesses to participate in the D.O.T.’s “In This Together Campaign”, and will relax 11 
signage standards during the construction period was included in the meeting packets. If the 12 
amendments are approved affected businesses will be allowed to apply for a Long Duration 13 
Special Event Sign Permit and display directional or location signage on a temporary basis dur-14 
ing the construction period. The amendment automatically “sunsets” on May 25, 2016, or 15 
whenever the Village Administrator determines that the construction and restoration has ended; 16 
whichever occurs first. The regulations pertaining to signage for temporary uses would also be 17 
amended to read, “Temporary uses permitted under this section may be allowed four temporary 18 
signs not to exceed 36 square feet in area on one side and 48 square feet in area on all sides.”. 19 
During discussion the Commission members indicated that they believe the proposed amend-20 
ments will be a good thing for the entire community. They also recommended that any appli-21 
cable fees be waived. 22 
 23 
At 5:50 P.M. Lienau called the Public Hearing regarding amendment of the provisions of 24 
§66.0302(d) of the Zoning Code which relate to signage for temporary uses; temporary suspen-25 
sion of the number of days delineated in §66.0722(a) of the Zoning Code, and creation of a 26 
sunset clause in §66.0722(a)(1) of the Zoning Code to order and asked if anyone wished to 27 
comment. 28 
 29 
Britt Unkefer indicated that he is in favor of the proposed amendments and believes signage 30 
which directs people to all the businesses in the Village should be erected for the duration of 31 
the construction period. 32 
 33 
Larry Gajda, who is a member of the SBAA Board of Directors, indicated that the SBAA is also 34 
in favor of the proposed amendments.  35 
 36 
At 5:56 P.M. Lienau asked if anyone else wished to comment, and when no one responded he 37 
declared that the public hearing was officially closed. 38 
 39 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Baker that the Plan Commission recom-40 
mends that an Ordinance which amends the provisions of §66.0302(d) of the Zoning Code 41 
which relate to signage for temporary uses; temporarily suspends the number of days delineated 42 
in §66.0722(a) of the Zoning Code and creates a sunset clause in §66.0722(a)(1) of the Zoning 43 
Code be approved. The Plan Commission also recommends that any applicable fees be waived. 44 
Motion carried - All ayes. 45 
 46 
 47 
 48 
 49 

116



Minutes of the April 8, 2014 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 

 -3-  

 

Item No. 3.  Public Hearing and discussion regarding amendment of the provisions of 1 
§66.302(d) which relate to direct sales of fireworks; and discussion regarding a recommenda-2 
tion from the SBAA and the SBLG Fire Department regarding “Pyro Palooza”: 3 
Jackson indicated that prior to coming to Sister Bay he ran a fireworks business in North Caroli-4 
na and would like to open such a business here. In accord with his contract he is required to 5 
inform the Village President of any secondary employment or business ventures he is consider-6 
ing and did that. He also contacted the Village Attorney regarding his plans and was informed 7 
that conflict of interest or ethical issues will not come into play. In order for fireworks to be sold 8 
anywhere in the Village, Municipal and Zoning Code amendments will be required. Since Jack-9 
son wanted to avoid any appearance of impropriety he did publish Public Hearing Notices re-10 
garding all the amendments. A draft of amendments to §66.302(d)(10) of the Zoning Code, 11 
which states that fireworks sales from a tent or kiosk with or without on-site storage for no more 12 
than 15 days be allowed as a temporary use in the B-1, B-2 and/or B-3 Districts, was included 13 
in the meeting packets.  14 
 15 
Discussion took place regarding Jackson’s proposal, and during that time Jackson pointed out 16 
that he has discussed this issue with the Fire Chief, who sent the letter of support which was 17 
included in the meeting packets. Anyone wishing to purchase fireworks would be required to 18 
obtain a permit. The Commission members noted that they believe a limit should be placed on 19 
the number of large fireworks tents which will be allowed in the Village. 20 
  21 
Sister Bay is a major tourist destination, yet does nothing to celebrate the 4th of July Holiday. 22 
Gills Rock, Baileys Harbor, Fish Creek, Egg Harbor and Sturgeon Bay all promote tourism 23 
around the Independence Day Holiday with paid, professional fireworks shows, and several 24 
members of the Parks Committee have been recommending that some type of special 4th of July 25 
event be scheduled here for quite some time. Sister Bay did little to differentiate itself from oth-26 
er communities around the 4th of July, nor did it promote the festive atmosphere and hospitality 27 
that visitors to the Village have come to expect. It is Jackson’s contention that given the recent 28 
adverse impacts of reconstruction on retailers and other businesses in and around Sister Bay, an 29 
event which enhances traffic and causes Sister Bay to become known for both a distinctive re-30 
tail opportunity and an event that is unique could be fortuitous for everyone. Therefore, he is 31 
recommending that “Pyro Palooza”, a “family fireworks ignition day” be conducted out at the 32 
Sports Complex on July 6, 2014.  No alcoholic beverages will be allowed on the grounds dur-33 
ing “Pyro Palooza”.  34 
 35 
At 6:21 P.M. Lienau called the Public Hearing regarding amendment of the provisions of 36 
§66.0302(d) which relate to direct sales of fireworks to order. 37 
 38 
Pipka Ulvilden indicated that she is “all for” anything that will bring people to the Village, but 39 
does have questions as to who firework sales and ignition will benefit in the long run.  40 
 41 
Britt and Sara Unkefer responded that they own a business in Fish Creek. Whenever fireworks 42 
are displayed in Fish Creek it is their busiest time of the year. They believe an event such as 43 
“Pyro Palooza” will benefit all the businesses in the Village as there is potential for many more 44 
people - participants as well as spectators, to be in the Village.  45 
 46 
Larry Gajda is a member of the SBAA Board of Directors. He stated that the SBAA will not be in 47 
charge of or involved with “Pyro Palooza” but does encourage activities which support the mis-48 
sion statement of the SBAA. If the event is run properly it should not be a “major headache” for 49 

117



Minutes of the April 8, 2014 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

I:\2014 Agendas\Plan Comm\2014\2014_04\040814 Plan Commission Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 04/08/2014; Last Printed: 5/22/2014 12:28 PM 

 -4-  

 

residents or business owners. Gajda did stress that he believes only Sister Bay business owners 1 
should be allowed to sell fireworks in the Village. 2 
 3 
Duffy stated that he is definitely in favor of events which will bring more people to the Village, 4 
but  has heard comments that some citizens are concerned about the safety issues which could 5 
arise if  fireworks are sold and/or ignited in the Village. 6 
 7 
At 6:31 P.M. Lienau asked if anyone else wished to comment, and when no on responded he 8 
declared that the public hearing was officially closed.    9 
 10 
A motion was made by Bell, seconded by Baker that the Plan Commission recommends that 11 
the Village Board approve the proposed amendments to §66.302(d) of the Zoning Code, on the 12 
condition that a one year sunset clause be imposed, and before any extensions are granted a 13 
public hearing be conducted. The recommendation is also made that Village officials consider 14 
limiting the number of tents from which fireworks sales will be allowed. Motion carried with 15 
Grutzmacher opposed. 16 
 17 
Item No. 4. Consider an amendment to the Development Agreement for The Wild Tomato; 18 
phasing: 19 
A draft of a revised Development Agreement for The Wild Tomato project was included in the 20 
meeting packets and the Commission members jointly reviewed that document. If the agree-21 
ment is approved phasing will be done. 22 
 23 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Baker that the Plan Commission recommends that 24 
the proposed amendments to The Wild Tomato Development Agreement be approved as pre-25 
sented. Motion carried –All ayes.    26 
 27 
Item No. 5. Report by the Zoning Administrator regarding development activities, various en-28 
forcement actions, and issuance of Sign and Zoning Permits: 29 
In March a Sign Permit was issued to Second Hand Sue’s and Jackson has been meeting with 30 
some developers who are contemplating new projects. None of those projects are to the point 31 
where they can be referred to the Plan Commission yet. 32 
 33 
Item No. 6. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred 34 
to a committee, Village official or employee: 35 
There were no suggestions for matters to be placed on a future agenda, and no referrals were 36 
made to a committee, Village official or employee. 37 
 38 
Adjournment: 39 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Baker to adjourn the meeting of the Plan 40 
Commission at 7:18 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 41 
 42 
Respectfully submitted,  43 

 44 
Janal Suppanz,  45 
Administrative Assistant 46 

118



PLAN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, MAY 27, 2014 2 

Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Fire Station – 2258 Mill Road 3 

(APPROVAL PENDING) 4 
 5 
The May 27, 2014 meeting of the Plan Commission was called to order by Chairperson Dave 6 
Lienau at 5:32 P.M. 7 
 8 
Present:  Chairperson Lienau, and members Pat Duffy, Marge Grutzmacher, Scott Baker, Eric 9 
Lundquist and Nate Bell. 10 
 11 
Excused:  Hugh Mulliken and Don Howard  12 
 13 
Others:  Jarod Schmidt of Robert E. Lee & Associates. 14 
 15 
Staff Members:  Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, and Administrative Assistant Janal 16 
Suppanz. 17 
 18 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 19 
Lienau asked if anyone wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item. No one responded.  20 
 21 
Jackson noted that a copy of a letter from Ingert Johnson had been included in the meeting 22 
packets. In that letter Ms. Johnson voices displeasure with some of the signs which are dis-23 
played in the Village, the appearance of the boat rental kiosk, run-off issues, and winter snow 24 
plowing procedures and practices. 25 
  26 
Approval of the agenda: 27 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Baker that the Agenda for the May 27, 28 
2014 meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 29 
 30 
Approval of minutes as published: 31 
As to the minutes for the April 8, 2014 meeting of the Plan Commission: 32 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Duffy that the minutes for the April 8, 2014 meet-33 
ing of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 34 
  35 
Business Items: 36 
Item No. 1. Discussion regarding amendment of the official map for the Village of Sister Bay; 37 
deleting some sections and recreating others throughout the Village: 38 
Jackson presented the current version of the Official Map for the Village and explained the pro-39 
posed amendments which are depicted on the draft Official Map which was included in the 40 
meeting packets. 41 
  42 
It was the consensus that a public hearing shall be conducted regarding amendment of the offi-43 
cial map for the Village of Sister Bay at the June Plan Commission Meeting. Motion carried – All 44 
ayes. 45 
 46 
Item No. 2. Discussion regarding the recommendation from the Zoning Board of Appeals that 47 
§66.0501(b)(e)(1), which states that garages are prohibited in front yards, be amended: 48 
On February 12, 2014 the Zoning Board of Appeals recommended that the Plan Commission 49 
consider repeal and/or amendment of §66.0501(b)(e)(1) of the Zoning Code, which prohibits 50 

119



Village of Sister Bay Plan Commission Meeting Minutes – May 27, 2014 

 -2-  

 

accessory structures in front yards. Discussion took place regarding this issue and Grutzmacher 1 
noted that the Plan Commission already addressed this issue several years ago and decided that 2 
the regulation was appropriate as written.  3 
 4 
It was the consensus that before further action is taken on the Zoning Board of Appeals’ rec-5 
ommendation the Zoning Administrator shall research the history of this issue and provide a 6 
written report to the Commission.     7 
 8 
Item No. 3.  Review of a preliminary plat for Stony Ridge Subdivision, Phase I and Phase IA: 9 
Jarod Schmidt of Robert E. Lee & Associates explained that Keith Garot, who was not able to 10 
attend this meeting, would like to proceed with Phase I and Phase IA of the Stony Ridge Subdi-11 
vision, which will consist of single family homes, ASAP. Jackson presented a preliminary plat 12 
for that development and pointed out the various aspects of it. As proposed Lots 5, 6 and 7 13 
won’t satisfy the Village’s rear yard setback regulations, and, therefore, they will have to be 14 
shifted a bit. Further, a temporary cul-de-sac will be utilized, a gravity sewage system will be 15 
installed, and smaller lots are being proposed. In order for the density within the development 16 
to be reduced a ¾ majority vote of the Commissioners will be required, but that may only oc-17 
cur if the Commission members determine that supplemental design elements or improvements 18 
are incorporated into the project which compensate for the modification of the particular 19 
standard. Garot is contending that the proposed development will satisfy the needs of individu-20 
als who want to live and work in the Village.  Duffy indicated that he is appreciative of the fact 21 
that Garot wants to expand his development and provide much needed affordable housing, but 22 
voiced concerns about the smaller lot sizes and uncertainty about road completion dates.  23 
 24 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Grutzmacher, that the preliminary plat for Stony 25 
Ridge Subdivision, Phase I and Phase IA be approved as presented. Lienau, Grutzmacher, Baker 26 
and Bell voted in favor of the motion, but Duffy and Lundquist were opposed. Motion failed. 27 
  28 
Lienau noted that the area in question was addressed in the CUPAC Study and was sited as be-29 
ing an area suited for the type of development being proposed by Garot. Schmidt also noted 30 
that it was his understanding that the Plan Commission had previously approved of Garot’s de-31 
velopment concept for the area in question, which was very similar to the development depict-32 
ed on the previously mentioned preliminary plat.  33 
 34 
A motion to reconsider was subsequently made by Duffy, seconded by Lundquist, and that mo-35 
tion carried – All ayes.  36 
 37 
A second motion was then made by Lienau, seconded by Grutzmacher, that the preliminary 38 
plat for Stony Ridge Subdivision, Phase I and Phase IA be approved as presented. Motion car-39 
ried – All ayes. 40 
 41 
It was the consensus that within twenty-four months of substantial completion and dedication 42 
to the Village of Phase I infrastructure Northwoods Drive shall be connected to Cherrywood.  43 
  44 
Item No. 4. Review and consider a motion to approve a Sign Permit for Jill Johnson: 45 
Jill Johnson would like to replace the sign for Island View Cottages, and photos of the existing 46 
sign as well as the proposed sign were included in the meeting packets. 47 
    48 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Lundquist that the Plan Commission ap-49 
proves of the issuance of a sign permit to Jill Johnson for the new sign for Island View Cottages 50 

120



Village of Sister Bay Plan Commission Meeting Minutes – May 27, 2014 

 -3-  

 

which was reviewed at this meeting. The issuance of the permit shall be conditioned upon 1 
submission of a Sign Permit Application and payment of the applicable fee. Motion carried – All 2 
ayes. 3 
  4 
Item No. 5. Review and consider a motion to approve a Sign Permit for the Wild Tomato: 5 
A Sign Permit Application for signage for the Wild Tomato was included in the meeting packets 6 
and the Commission members jointly reviewed that documentation. 7 
 8 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Bell that the Plan Commission approves of the issu-9 
ance of a sign permit to Britt Unkefer for the Bier Zot sign for the Wild Tomato Restaurant, as 10 
presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 11 
 12 
At 6:55 P.M. a brief recess was taken and the Commission reconvened at 6:58 P.M.  13 
  14 
Item No. 6. Report by the Zoning Administrator regarding development activities, various en-15 
forcement actions, and issuance of Sign and Zoning Permits: 16 

A.  Issuance of a sandwich board permit to Pipka’s: 17 
A sandwich board permit was recently issued to Pipka’s. 18 
 19 

B.  Issuance of a long duration special event permit for Ironwood Yoga Studio: 20 
Brad Massey, the owner of Ironwood Yoga Studio, has scheduled a grand open-21 
ing for his new business, which will be operated in the building which formerly 22 
housed The Casual Living Gallery, and a photo of a banner which was recently 23 
erected without a permit was included in the meeting packets. Jackson contact-24 
ed Massey and informed him that the banner had to come down as a permit had 25 
not been issued for it and made a referral to the Plan Commission.  26 
 27 
It was the consensus that the previously mentioned Ironwood Yoga banner shall 28 
be allowed, but that the owners of Ironwood Yoga Studio shall be informed that 29 
if they intend to erect any additional signage, prior approval from the Village 30 
Administrator and/or Plan Commission will be required.   31 

 32 
Item No. 7. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred 33 
to a committee, Village official or employee: 34 
It was the consensus that the following issues shall be addressed at a future meeting of 35 
the Plan Commission: 36 
   37 

 Review of the Village’s Zoning Fee Schedule. 38 

 Discussion regarding the possibility of allowing the Village President and Village Admin-39 
istrator to approve signage displayed in the Village without the approval of the Plan 40 
Commission unless there is a considerable change in the design and appearance of that 41 
signage. 42 

 Discussion regarding the recommendation from the Zoning Board of Appeals that 43 
§66.0501(b)(e)(1), which states that garages are prohibited in front yards, be amended. 44 

 45 
Lienau noted that at today’s County Board Meeting J.B. Van Hollen was present and stressed 46 
that no discussion should take place regarding an action item before a Board, Committee or 47 
Commission unless and until a motion has been made and seconded with respect to that item. 48 
It was the consensus that all future agendas should be drafted and meetings conducted with this 49 
rule in mind. 50 

121



Minutes of the February 4, 2014 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

I:\2014 Agendas\Plan Comm\2014\2014_05\052714 Plan Commission Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 9/18/2013; Last Printed: 6/13/2014 3:33 PM 

 -4-  

 

Lienau also stressed that all Village officials should be extremely cognizant of the Open Meet-1 
ings Law. 2 
   3 
Adjournment: 4 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Baker to adjourn the meeting of the Plan 5 
Commission at 7:24 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 6 
 7 
Respectfully submitted,  8 

 9 
Janal Suppanz,  10 
Administrative Assistant 11 

122



SBAA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 1 

THURSDAY, MAY 1, 2014 2 

SISTER BAY ADVANCEMENT ASSOCIATION COORDINATOR’S OFFICE 3 

10668 N. BAY SHORE DRIVE  4 

 (APPROVAL PENDING) 5 

 6 

The May 1, 2014 meeting of the Sister Bay Advancement Association Board of Directors 7 
was called to order by President Steve Gomoll at 8:09 A.M.    8 
 9 
Present:   Steve Gomoll, Heidi Hitzeman, Jeannie Hoffman, Drew Bickford, Jessica Grasse, 10 
Windy Bittorf and Nora Zacek  11 
 12 
Excused:  Larry Gajda and James Larsen 13 
 14 
Absent:  John Ostran and Tonya Crowell 15 
 16 
Staff Members:   Paige Funkhouser, SBAA Coordinator, and Janal Suppanz, Secretary. 17 
 18 
Others:  Ron Kane and Carol Clikeman 19 
 20 
Business Items: 21 
Item No. 1.  Approval of the Agenda: 22 
A motion was made by Bickford, seconded by Zacek, that the Agenda for the May 1, 2014 23 
meeting of the SBAA Board of Directors be approved as presented. Motion carried – All 24 
ayes. 25 
 26 
Item No. 2.  Approval of the minutes for the April 3, 2014 SBAA meeting: 27 
A motion was made by Bickford, seconded by Zacek that the minutes for the April 3, 2014 28 
meeting of the SBAA Board of Directors be approved as presented. Motion carried – All 29 
ayes. 30 
 31 
Item No. 3.  Financial Report: 32 
Bittorf and Suppanz will not have an opportunity to do the monthly bookwork until 33 
Monday, May 5, 2014. Bittorf will see that updated financial reports are e-mailed to all the 34 
Board members ASAP. Funkhouser and Bittorf did give a brief oral financial report.  35 
 36 
A motion was made by Zacek, seconded by Hitzeman that the oral financial report which 37 
was made at this meeting is approved as presented, and Bittorf shall e-mail updated 38 
financial reports for the SBAA to all the Board members ASAP. Motion carried – All ayes. 39 
 40 
Item No. 4. Discussion regarding the Civility Project: 41 
Marge Grutzmacher has informed Funkhouser that a representative from the Door County 42 
Civility Project would like to make a presentation to the SBAA. Discussion took place 43 
regarding this issue and it was the consensus that the presentation shall be made at the 44 
Spring Social. 45 
 46 
Item No. 4. Discussion regarding Family Fireworks Day: 47 
Family Fireworks Day was not approved by the Village Board. 48 

123



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes –  May 1, 2014 

- 2 - 

Item No. 5. Discussion regarding the beach grand opening celebration in 2015: 1 
The performance pavilion is scheduled to be completed by mid-July and work on the 2 
beach project is scheduled to be completed in 2015. The suggestion has been made that a 3 
beach grand opening celebration be conducted after all the previously mentioned work is 4 
completed. It was the consensus that the beach grand opening celebration shall be 5 
conducted on June 13, 2015 or June 27, 2015. It was also the consensus that it would be a 6 
good idea to book a well-known artist to perform in the pavilion during the grand opening 7 
celebration. Further discussion will take place regarding this issue over the course of the 8 
next few months.   9 
 10 
Item No. 5.  Discussion regarding upcoming festivals and special events: 11 
 12 

 Goat Parade – May 10th 13 
The Goat Parade will be conducted on Saturday, May 10th. The Parade 14 
Permit has been received from the D.O.T. The parade will start at 10:30 15 
A.M. and participants will line up at 10:00 A.M. 16 
 17 

 Field & Street Rally – May 25th 18 
The Field & Street Rally will be conducted in the Shopko parking lot on 19 
May 25th. Planning is coming along well for that event and response from 20 
the business community has been phenominal. To date $3,625 has been 21 
collected/pledged. Promotional materials will be distributed next week.   22 
 23 

 Spring Social – June 3rd 24 
The Spring Social will be conducted on Tuesday, June 3rd. Everyone will 25 
meet at Pirate’s Cove for mini-golf at 5:30 P.M. and then head over to 26 
Northern Grill for heavy appetizers, drinks and social time. The “per 27 
person” charge for the Spring Social will be $15. The deadline for 28 
reservations is Friday, May 30th.  29 

 30 

 Goats on Poles and Door County Festival of Fine Arts 31 
Artists are being recruited to paint and decorate the new goats. The 32 
Village’s Maintenance Department employees will see that all the existing 33 
goats are mounted on the poles before the goat parade. Planning is ongoing 34 
for the Festival of Fine Arts. If any of the artists need tents, they should 35 
contact Funkhouser, who will make rental arrangements.  36 
 37 

 Concerts In the Park 38 
All the concerts for the 2014 season have been booked.  39 
 40 

 Fall Fest 41 
Representatives of the Family Centers of Door County have asked if it would be 42 
possible for them to move their waffle breakfast to Sister Bay. They would like to 43 
conduct the waffle breakfast in the Village Hall on the Sunday of Fall Fest. It was 44 
the consensus that the Family Centers’ request shall be granted. 45 
 46 
 47 
 48 

124



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes –  May 1, 2014 

- 3 - 

 Film Fest 1 
Work is ongoing on planning for the Shimmy Marcus Encore Night scheduled for 2 
Saturday, May 24th. That event will be held in the Village Hall. 3 
 4 

Item No. 6. Economic Development Update:  5 
The Economic Development Committee has not met recently. 6 
 7 
Item No. 7. Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Update: 8 
Work is ongoing on the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Project. Word on the street is that 9 
asphalting is scheduled to commence on Monday, May 5th. Concrete is being laid right 10 
now. 11 
  12 
Item No. 8. Discussion regarding membership renewals: 13 
Funkhouser is happy to report that a few new business memberships have been received. 14 
She is working on recruiting new members.  15 
 16 
Item No. 9. Discussion regarding the Farmer’s Market: 17 
The Village Administrator has informed Funkhouser that Village employees will manage 18 
the Farmer’s Market. The market will be conducted on the former Helm’s property, across 19 
the street from the new performance pavilion, on Wednesdays from 3:00 P.M. to 8:00 P.M. 20 
and Thursdays from 8:00 A.M. to noon – July through mid-October. Vendors are being 21 
solicited, and a JEM Grant Application has been submitted. Funkhouser will see that 22 
advertising is done for the market. Hopefully all those expenses will be covered by vendor 23 
fees and grant funds.  24 
 25 
Item No. 10. Coordinator’s Report:  26 
The Coordinator’s Report was included in the meeting packets and the Board members 27 
jointly reviewed that document. The ice went out on April 28th and the Visitor Center is 28 
now open for the season!!!! The Egg Hunt went well and was very well attended – 29 
approximately 400 people were present. The Board members thanked Zeke Jackson for 30 
serving as the Easter Bunny. Funkhouser wrote an article for Lakeland Boating Magazine in 31 
exchange for a half page ad for Sip & Savor/Paddlefest. The cost equivalency of such an ad 32 
is $945. Room tax collections for February were up. Unfortunately the Sister Bay brochure 33 
will not be available until next week, but it will be distributed ASAP.   34 
 35 
Item No. 11. Consider a motion to convene into closed session to conduct the annual 36 
performance evaluation for Paige Funkhouser, the SBAA Coordinator: 37 
At 9:16 A.M. a motion was made by Zacek, seconded by Hoffman that the SBAA Board of 38 
Directors convene into closed session to conduct the annual performance evaluation for 39 
Paige Funkhouser, the SBAA Coordinator.  40 
 41 
A roll call vote was taken on the motion and the Board members voted in the following 42 
fashion: 43 
 44 

Gomoll – Aye;   Hitzeman – Aye;   Hoffman – Aye;  45 
Bickford – Aye; Grasse – Aye;   Bittorf – Aye;   46 

 Zacek – Aye. 47 
Motion carried. 48 
 49 

125



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes –  May 1, 2014 

- 4 - 

Item No. 12. Consider a motion to reconvene into open session: 1 
At 9:50 A.M. a motion was made by Zacek, seconded by Hitzeman that the SBAA Board 2 
of Directors reconvene into open session.  3 
 4 
Another roll call vote was taken and the Board members voted in the following fashion: 5 
 6 

Gomoll – Aye;   Hitzeman – Aye;   Hoffman – Aye;  7 
Bickford – Aye; Grasse – Aye;   Bittorf – Aye;   8 

Zacek – Aye. 9 
Motion carried. 10 
 11 
Item No. 13. Consider a motion to take action: 12 
A motion was made by Hitzeman, seconded by Bickford that Paige Funkhouser, the SBAA 13 
Coordinator, shall be given a 3% wage increase. That wage increase shall become effective 14 
May 1, 2014. Motion carried – All ayes.  15 
 16 
Adjournment: 17 
A motion was made by Zacek, seconded by Bickford to adjourn the meeting of the SBAA 18 
Board of Directors at 10:02 A.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 19 
 20 
Respectfully submitted, 21 

 22 
Janal Suppanz, Secretary 23 

126



5/1/2014 Minutes of the Sister Bay Historical Society Board meeting 

Present – John Fletcher, Donna Scattergood, Eugene Jarvis, Gary Dooly, Pat 

Wisner, Don Howard, Fred Johnson, Catherine Peot, Roberta Kutlik, Jill Lhost, 

Linda Johnson 

Meeting was called to order by President Fred Johnson. 

Motion to approve the minutes of the April meeting was made by Don. Second by 

Pat. Passed. 

 

A membership/fundraising report from Eloise was presented. All board members 

are encouraged to renew their memberships and consider an annual monetary 

donation at this time.. 

 

Advertising – Pat – Discussion about having larger, changeable weekly display ads 

in local papers. Our expanded days and hours of operation should also be 

emphasized. Motion by Don; second by John; to approve payment of $589.04 to 

Peninsula Pulse to prepay our seasonal advertisement. Passed. 

 

Financial report – Linda – Motion to approve by Jill; second by John. Passed. 

 

Gardens/Mowing – Eugene –. Motion by Pat; second by Don to hire Dave 

Merkel’s service for a season. Passed. 

 

Budget amendment – A motion to amend the budget adding $3000 to Lawn and 

Garden and the appropriate increase in earnings to offset the expense was made by 

John; second by Don. Passed. 

 

Susan Armor has been hired as Assistant to the Curator for up to 16 hrs. per week.  

This expenditure is included in the budget amount already established for payroll. 

 

Seasonal cleaning – A target date of Tuesday, June 3 at 8:30am was agreed on for 

cleaning. All who have signed up to help are asked to come that day.  Stacy 

Niedzwiecki will not be cleaning the rest room this year.  

 

127



On May 12 at 4:30pm, Rick Bernstein of the Wisconsin Historical Society office in 

Madison will be presenting information about the History Tour that is coming to 

Ephraim this summer. The presentation is at the Sturgeon Bay Library. 

 

Water should be turned on by the 4
th
 week of May. Don will do it. 

 

Fred suggested the board implement a formalized committee structure.  There was 

agreement by the board. We are going to compile a list of existing committees and 

their chairs. Any suggestions of needed new committees will be considered and 

chairs sought from among our general membership. Jill will collect the 

suggestions. A timeline of duties and when they are to be done each year will be 

helpful to each committee. 

 

A Grand Opening will be held to officially open the Liberty Park Birch Cottage 

exhibit to the public. It will be June 21, from 10am to 2pm. Food will be served 

from 11am to 1pm. Program will be a 1pm. Several special guests are being invited 

to join in celebrating the history of Liberty Park Lodge and Cottages. 

 

The SBHS Annual Meeting will be June 26. Gathering is at 5:30 for a potluck 

supper. Meeting at 7:00pm and program at 7:30pm. 

 

Nominating Committee – Jill will call board members whose terms are expiring to 

verify if they are willing to serve another 2 year term. 

 

The new Sister Bay History book is due to be published soon. 

 

We need a training session with our web designer in order to keep the site updated 

during the summer.  

 

Meeting adjourned. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jill Lhost, acting Secretary 

 

128



6/5/2014 Minutes of the Sister Bay Historical Society Board meeting 

Present:  Fred Johnson, Pat Wisner, Eugene Jarvis, Karen Sunstrom, Donna 

Scattergood, John Fletcher, Linda Johnson, Jill Lhost, Catherine Peot, Susan 

Armour. Absent: Roberta Kutlik, Gary Dooly, Lynnea Hickey. 

Meeting called to order by Fred Johnson. 

Motion to approve minutes of May meeting made by Pat; second by Catherine. 

Passed 

Motion to approve financial report made by Jill; second by Eugene. Passed 

Motion to approve payment of insurance premium of $960.00 made by Jill; second 

by John. Passed 

The bill for mowing services was set aside for further clarification. Eugene will 

look into it and report next month. 

Curator’s report was delivered and copies handed out by Susan, in Roberta’s 

absence.  

Donna reported that the pending sale of the Sister Bay school property has been 

suspended. The property is still for sale. The log school (Sister Bay tourist 

information office) is available to the SBHS. SBHS must assume costs to move the 

building to the COTP.  

Due to residency change to Ephriam, Donna will no longer be serving on the Sister 

Bay Board of Trustees; therefore, will not serve as their liaison to the SBHS. She 

expressed her well wishes to the society. 

Pat reported on ongoing advertising and publicity. 

Gardens – Eugene has always used his own sprayer for keeping the pathways free 

of weeds but it has broken down. The board authorized Eugene to purchase a new 

one for the SBHS. It was noted that the gardens and grounds look beautiful again 

this year! Thank you, Eugene. 

Question arose whether a water test is to be done. We will check with Don when 

he returns, as to past procedure.  

129



Eugene will ask Jake Kodanko if he will take the oldest of our riding lawn mowers. 

It doesn’t work and is taking up storage space. 

Construction – work day is now Monday mornings each week. 

Linda will contact Wendy Schneider about scheduling weekly bathroom cleaning 

and possible other miscellaneous cleaning at a rate of $15/hour. The bulk of the 

building cleaning is done for this spring. 

There is some confusion about actual opening date of the COTP. The Grand 

Opening event, including special programming, lunch and opening the Birch 

Cottage is June 21, open10am to 2pm, lunch and music 11am to 1pm, program 

1pm.  

Thank you to John Fletcher for finding and sponsoring the cost of the musicians. 

We will plan food to serve 100 for the lunch. The lunch will be sloppy joes, chips, 

pickles, salads, cookies and lemonade. 

The Sister Bay history book needs to acquire an ISBN number. ISBN numbers are 

required for a book in the publishing and distributing process. We anticipate that 

there may many more books that we publish, utilizing the other 9 numbers. If 

purchased individually, the cost is $125.00.  Motion to acquire 10 numbers at a 

cost of $295.00 by John; second by Linda. Passed.  

The program for the Annual Meeting will be presented by Laura Moegenburg and 

Myrma Howard. The subject will be Genealogy.  

Committees and projects review was discussed. Committee and project 

assignments, as well as an annual timeline for each are necessary due to the many 

varied activities of the organization. All members and guests will be invited and 

encouraged to participate with committees and projects that are of interest to them. 

Next step is listing chairpersons or person responsible for each committee/project. 

The Heritage Alliance recently hosted Rick Bernstein from the Wisconsin 

Historical Society. Fred reported that Rick encouraged us to take advantage of the 

resources and experts at the state level. They have a vast amount of expertise to 

offer. In as much as SBHS is an affiliate of the WHS, it was suggested that SBHS 

130



schedule a representative from the state office present a program to the SBHS 

members and the community, once each year.  

Meeting adjourned. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jill Lhost, acting Secretary 

 

131



 DOOR COUNTY TOURISM ZONE  1 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 2 

Minutes of April 17th 2014, 9:00 a.m. 3 
Paul J Bertschinger Community Center, 7860 STH 42, Egg Harbor, Wisconsin 4 

 5 
ACTION ITEMS: 6 
Skare moved and Nelson seconded to approve the agenda as submitted. Motion carried. 7 

Nelson moved and Larson seconded to approve the February 20th, 2014 minutes as corrected. Motion carried. 8 

Nelson moved and Skare seconded to approve reports and payables plus receipts to date in the amount of 9 
85,936.29. Motion carried.   10 

Larson moved and Skare seconded to  convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statutes, Section 11 
19.85(1)(a)(f) or (g) to confer with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice 12 
concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or likely to become involved; to 13 
wit: enforcement actions against lodging providers who have failed to obtain lodging permits and to timely remit 14 
monthly room tax report and tax payments. Motion carried by roll call. 15 

Larson moved and Nelson seconded to reconvene into Open Session. Motion carried. 16 

Consider a motion to take action, if required. 17 
Larson moved and Weddig seconded that Roberts take action and proceed with listing the permit holders 18 
discussed in Closed Session with Credit Management Control and consulting Attorney Vande Castle regarding 19 
delinquent properties and pursue action as advised. Motion carried. 20 

Larson moved and Skare seconded to adjourn. Motion carried. 21 

Committee Members Present by Roll Call: Josh Van Lieshout, Bryan Nelson, Jeff Larson, Bill Weddig, Dick Skare, 22 

Excused: Bob Starr and Dave Holtz. 23 

Also in Attendance: Kim Roberts /Administrative Assistant DCTZC, Jack Moneypenny/DCVB, Bob Lindahl/ Permit 24 
Holder. 25 

Call to order 26 
Chair Van Lieshout called the meeting to order at 9:05 AM. 27 

Approval of the Agenda 28 
Skare moved and Nelson seconded to approve the agenda as submitted. Motion carried. 29 

Approval of the February 20th, 2014 minutes 30 
Nelson moved and Larson seconded to approve the February 20th, 2014 minutes. Motion carried. 31 

Report by the Door County Visitor Bureau on marketing efforts 32 
Moneypenny reported that for 2014 all is well out of the gate.  The metrics are where they need to be.  He noted that 33 
lobby traffic was down, but more than likely it was agreed that this metric has suffered due to the weather. January and 34 
February room availability were up, but perhaps people didn’t want to get out of the car to explore the Visitor Center in 35 
the cold weather. 36 
Moneypenny shared his enthusiasm for the “power up, wind down” out of home promotions in Milwaukee (opened 37 
March 17) and Madison (opened March 18). The stations will remain in the malls until June.  These units installed in 38 
Milwaukee and Madison malls offer a place to plug in and relax to look at the Visitor Guide and enter the text to win 39 
campaign.  He added that there was a 9x12 foot banner in each mall above the escalators in each mall advertising the “text 40 
to win” campaign. Door County visitor information is available on site and an available text-to-win promotional 41 
campaign also provides guests a chance to enter and win Door County overnight stays and gift certificates.  Moneypenny 42 
went on to say that pallet of Visitor Guides are on site at each mall.  The Milwaukee Mall had already gone through two-43 
thirds (2/3) of their guides.  The installation ends in June, but there may be a possibility of continuing it.  When the 44 
promotion is completed the installations will return to Door County. One unit will be permanently installed in the lobby 45 
at the Visitor Bureau and the other will be available to be rented out to the community.   46 

Moneypenny said that much of the marketing plan is front loaded which in turn means that most of the advertising is 47 
already running.  He went on to say that Comcast Chicago is currently running commercials, but with a twist.  During 48 
commercials, viewers can hit “enter” on their remote and order a Visitor Guide. It is an interactive way for viewers to 49 

132



obtain information about Door County; over 500 visitor guide requests have resulted from this ad in Chicago. Comcast 1 
sends a form to the DCVB for the request based on the customer information Comcast has on file for the consumer. 2 
Moneypenny understood that from what he is hearing from Innkeepers advance reservations are good across the board 3 
and it looks like it should be a good summer.  The outdoor renovations at the Visitor Center are on schedule: Cherry trees 4 
are being planted, the parking lot is being expanded for employee parking for thirteen (13) spaces behind the building 5 
and the ECVS is set for a May 21, 2014 installation.  Moneypenny stressed that all the renovation keeps up the curb 6 
appeal for visitors. 7 
Nelson asked if the kiosk’s in the malls are staffed? Moneypenny said that the installations are self explanatory and not 8 
staffed.  Skare asked what information was available in the kiosk. Moneypenny responded that there is a rack with 9 
brochures, a unit with chargers and a 32” flat screen TV with commercials and video looping on it.  Each mall fills the 10 
guides in the racks as needed.  Moneypenny sees great opportunities for these units for trade shows, community events 11 
(Pumpkin Patch) and other tourism related events.  Requests should be made to Michelle at the DCVB and more 12 
information will be in the upcoming newsletter on how to reserve a unit.  It could be used outdoors with a canopy over it 13 
to protect it from the elements. 14 
Moneypenny announced that the new Cherry Micro site is live and with the help of the historical society it turned out to 15 
be a nice retrospective of the Cherry industry.  He advised the Committee that they could find the site by going to the 16 
DoorCounty.com site selecting “Experience” and then “Cherry”    17 
Skare inquired about the status of the ECVS project. Moneypenny said there was one (1) “defiantly maybe” and five (5) 18 
“maybe” parties interested in purchasing an ECVS unit for installation.  He went on to say the ribbon cutting ceremony is 19 
scheduled for May 21, 2014 with Secretary of Tourism Stephanie Klett who will be on site to plug in a car for charging.  20 
Moneypenny expects good media coverage.  Moneypenny said that there was no deadline for participation in the 21 
program and he doesn’t think there ever will be a demand for twenty four (24) units which would result in the volume 22 
discount.  However, he said that the ECVS units cost approximately two thousand nine hundred ninety dollars ($2,990) 23 
and installation has been quoted at one thousand five hundred dollars ($1,500).  He stressed that the cost of running 24 
these units electricity wise is the same as running a refrigerator.  Skare discussed the Town of Gibraltar adding it to their 25 
agenda for possible installation of an ECVS in the Town of Gibraltar. 26 
Van Lieshout inquired about page 2 in the March 2014 DCVB Marketing and Communications Report. He asked about 27 
the “where to stay” requested pages which were in spot 2 “Where to stay”, spot 8 “Where to stay/cottage- house” and 28 
“Where to stay/log cabin-log house”.  He asked if the “Where to stay” in spot 2 accounted for hotels and motels.  29 
Moneypenny said yes. 30 
Van Lieshout asked how the “Book it now” button was working on the DCVB website.  Moneypenny said they had 31 
gotten a couple kinks ironed out, but said as far as he knows it is working well.  Nelson added that he has had very little 32 
come through for online reservations. Moneypenny asked if he could track where his reservations come from. Nelson 33 
responded that he can absolutely track his reservations through Google Analytics.  Moneypenny said since the new 34 
option was allowed on the DCVB website, they have had to make adjustments to how it works.  The original set up of the 35 
sort allowed for only the “book it now” participants to show in the list of the availability calendar.  They had to level the 36 
playing field by showing all lodging providers with vacancies and then the user has to select the option “Online booking”.  37 
Users simply select the dates for arrival and departure and then the number of adults.  In the results page, there is an 38 
option for the user to select “only show properties that accept online bookings”.  This was the most serious change that 39 
was made since the project went live.  Moneypenny says this change has satisfied the issue. 40 
Van Lieshout asked how many lodging providers had online booking in the county.  Moneypenny responded that it was 41 
difficult to tell how many lodging owners had online booking available; just through Baylakes Information Systems (Greg 42 
Swain) there are one hundred (100) that have the capability to allow online reservations.  Then there are those who don’t 43 
use Logical and some of those properties can offer online reservations through their websites.   44 

Report from Administrative Assistant on current activities, projects and issues associated with permitting new 45 
members 46 
Roberts reported that for the report month of January she sent out twenty five (25) “No Report” letters to owner 47 
managed properties on March 18, 2014.  As of April 10, 2014, only one (1) no reports remain for the month of January.  48 
Unpaid taxes, fees and interest amount to $2,311.11 as of April 10th, 2014 from nine (9) permit holders.   49 
Thirteen (13) permits were issued since March reporting.  Roberts reported that she is currently at work on thirteen (13) 50 
unpermitted properties through compliance efforts.   51 
Roberts went on to discuss that she has been at work with two (2) local websites that feature transient rentals. She said 52 
that she had asked for their assistance in making sure that properties listed on their sites had a permit for transient rental 53 

133



through the DCTZC. Both site owners were agreeable and since the conversations Roberts reports that she has been 1 
contacted by both for information.   2 

Roberts brought up an area that needs attention: the deactivation process of permits.  She explained that currently she 3 
asks that permit holders sign a form attesting that they are no longer renting their property.  She went on to say that she 4 
has added to the form the requirement that property owners must take down all online advertising and property 5 
websites.  Roberts explained that she has received some push back from permit holders on this point.  She advised that 6 
this is something that the Committee needs to examine and possibly consider amending.  She provided the legal opinion 7 
of Attorney Vande Castle who stated in his opinion, “there is nothing in the ordinances that provided for either the 8 
deactivation of the permit or the revocation of the permit.”  In the letter that Roberts read from Vande Castle she went on 9 
to read, “Because of the format by which the administration of room tax is set up, it would, in my opinion, be necessary 10 
for the municipalities to amend their room tax enabling ordinance to provide for the deactivation of an existing and other 11 
duly issued lodging permit.” “There is nothing in the procedural format provided under Sec. 66.015, Statute,. that would 12 
appear to allow the Commission itself to establish a formal deactivation process.”  “It would also be appropriate at that 13 
point to consider establishing a process to revoke an existing permit.  Likewise, consideration should also be given to 14 
establishing authority for the Commission to “administratively deactivate” an existing permit.” 15 
Van Lieshout asked if there was a motion to have Vande Castle begin drafting an amendment to the ordinance to allow 16 
for guidelines for the deactivation of transient lodging permits.  Skare motioned to begin a draft amendment to the 17 
ordinance and Nelson seconded. Motion carried. 18 
Nelson added the process to amend the ordinance would not be quick.  He added that the draft would have to be 19 
distributed to each municipality and be put on meeting agendas for discussion and approval. He went on to say that the 20 
Commission should look very closely at the ordinance and make sure nothing else needs to be addressed at this time.  21 
Skare added that the June Annual meeting should be the goal to finalize the process. Roberts said she would take a look 22 
at past meeting minutes and make sure there are no loose ends. Weddig asked if any of the failed legislation of AB385 23 
should be taken into account as we review what should be amended. 24 

Discussion on Current Comparable Occupancy numbers 25 
Wedding noted that considering the weather, the numbers weren’t bad.  Moneypenny was very pleased with the 7.3% 26 
increase. 27 

Consideration of approving reports and payables plus receipts to date. 28 
Nelson moved and Skare seconded to approve reports and payables plus receipts to date Motion carried.   29 

Report from Commissioners on Feedback from Local Boards on Recent Issues 30 
Weddig asked if AB385 would be reintroduced.  Moneypenny said the League of Municipalities overwhelmed the Wisconsin 31 
Hotel and Lodging Association.  The lobby was so strong that the bill never got anywhere.  He added that the language is to be 32 
reworked and reintroduced.  The DCVB will take another look when it is reintroduced and decide at that time whether or not 33 
to support the bill. 34 

Discussion of Municipal Licenses for Transient Rentals  35 
Van Lieshout went over the discussion from the February meeting in which the question was posed whether it would be 36 
sound advice to suggest municipalities to require municipal licenses for transient rentals.  The question was posed to Attorney 37 
Vande Castle who said, “On the foregoing basis, I would conclude that a municipality could, for public welfare, health and 38 
safety reason, decided to require the purveyors of short term transient lodging to obtain a business license from the 39 
municipality.  He added, “I would note in these regards that because municipal licensure is based on public safety and welfare 40 
concerns it is important for the municipality to identify the nature or basis of its concerns both in its discussion of the potential 41 
regulation but also in the preamble or purposes section of the ordinance.” Van Lieshout stressed the need for public health and 42 
safety for such a requirement.  Weddig thought it may open up liability issues.  Skare felt it would be cost prohibitive.  Van 43 
Lieshout added that there have been no complaints regarding rental inventory therefore he saw no need to add such a 44 
requirement based on room tax. 45 

Comments, Correspondence and Concerns from the Public 46 

Bob Lindahl was in attendance and asked to address the Committee with concerns regarding reporting of room tax.  He 47 
wished for the Committee to hear the perspective of a permit holder.  He added that the Committee doesn’t look like an 48 
adversarial group but felt that the experience of being a permit holder felt adversarial.  He went on to say that his property isn’t 49 
on his mind all the time and the rental of his property is one of those things he does given the real estate market.  Admittedly he 50 
said that he had from time to time forgotten to send his monthly reports in a timely manner. He felt that the reminder letter 51 
sent from the DCTZC office was aggravating.  He suggested a postcard, but stressed the communication needs to be lightened 52 
up. Lindahl disliked the threatening letter regarding non-filing. 53 

134



Lindahl also brought up the issue of quarterly reporting. He said that it would be much easier to remember and the thought 1 
process more sensible.   2 

Consider a motion to convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statutes, Section 19.85(1)(a)(f) or (g) to 3 
confer with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be 4 
adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or likely to become involved; to wit: enforcement actions 5 
against lodging providers who have failed to obtain lodging permits and to timely remit monthly room tax report and 6 
tax payments. Motion carried by roll call. 7 

Larson moved to convene into Closed Session as per statutes named; Skare seconded. Motion carried 8 

CLOSED SESSION 9 
Consider a Motion to Reconvene into Open Session 10 
Larson moved to reconvene into Open Session; Nelson seconded. Motion carried. 11 

Consider a motion to take action, if required. 12 
Larson moved and Weddig seconded that Roberts take action and proceed with consulting Attorney Vande Castle 13 
regarding delinquent properties and pursue action as advised. Motion carried. 14 

Adjournment 15 
Larson moved to adjourn; Skare seconded. Motion carried.  16 
The meeting adjourned at 10:15 a.m. 17 
Respectfully submitted, 18 

 19 
Kim Roberts 20 
Administrative Assistant 21 
 22 

  23 

135



136



137



138




